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.. lVIR. :F'. T. P. B"URT, Q.C., with him IVJR. C.IL01VIITH,. (instructed by 
Bnultbee, Gndfrey & Virtue) appeared fnr the applicant. 

~ViR~~B_~ D. WILSON, Q.C., with him MR. K. H. PARKER, (instructed 
by the State Crnwn Snh.ci t0r fnr W .A.) appeared fnr 
the Crnwn. 

BAli.WICK, C.J: Yes, Mr . .Burt? 

NIR. J3URT: May it please the Cnurt. This is an applicati0n 
f0r special leave tn appeal fr0r11 the judgment r>f 
the Cnurt nf Criminal Appeal which was delivered nn 
22nd May 1964, by which the applicant's appeal against 
his cnnvicti0n r>n the charge nf wilful murder, the 
C~"'nvictinn being dated 15th August 1961, was dismissed. 

The m"tirn fnr special leave appears at p.l 
nf Vnl.l nf the Appeal B0nk. The Appeal Br>rk, as the 
cnurt can see, is in twn vnlumes. 

The case came befr>re the Crurt rf Criminal 
Appeal 0n a reference tn it by the Minister fnr Justice 
under Secti0n 21 rf the Criminal C0de. The matter 
came t0 the cnurt in that way because there had been 
a petitinn t0 the Gnvernnr by the present applicant. 
The present applicant has already appealed in nther 
pr0ceed ings al tr,gether; he has appealed tn the Cnurt 0f 
Criminal Appeal against his c0nvicti0n in the first 
instance, which appeal was n0t successful,and fr0m that 
he made an applicatinn f0r special leave tn appeal t0 
this C0urt, in which he was n0t successful. But the 
submissinn that we make is that that histnry dr>es n0t 
affect the jurisdicti0n t0 hear the secnnd appeal n0r 
d0es it affect the jurisdicti0n 0f this cnurt. 

BARWICK, C.J; The Statute says the regulati0n is tr' be treated 
as •..... 

lVm. BURT: That is s0, Sir. Actually in 0ne 0f the High C0urt 
decisi0ns - I think it was Davis. v. Cr,dy - this happened. 

The jurisd ictinn 0f the C0ur t nf Criminal 
Appeal which was invnked 0n this appeal is tn be fnund 
in Secti0n 689(1). It is the general head nf jurisdicti0n 
nn the basis that there has been a miscarriage nf justice. 

lVIENZIES, J: What dnes the cr'urt c0nsider when the matter has 
been referred tn it? D0es it c0nsider it having regard 
tn the evidence in the case 0riginally and 0ne further 
matter which is brnught t0 the attentinn nf the cnurt, 
that the c0nvictirn was cr>rrect? 

NIR. BURT: N0, Sir, I wr>uld submit nnt. 

lVW:NZIES, J: What d0es it cnnsider? 

lVlR. BURT: It cr>nsiders the material that y0ur Hr'nr ur has 
mentir>ned - namely, the evidence r>n the 0riginal trial. 
It c0nsiders the new evidence which the applicant nr>w 
wishes tn prnduce. But the questi0n that it asks itself 
is n r>t, with respect,quite the questir·n that ynur Hr>n0ur 
suppnsed. 

PM/H/5a. 
Beamish. 
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MENzrES, J: Well,what is the questinn- because we treat it 
as an appeal. 

lVJR. BURT: Yes. 

~IILNZL!:<;S, J: Appeal frrm what? 

MR. BURT: This is an appeal frnm the cnn victi0n, the 0riginal 
Cf'nVictirn. 

PM/H/6E'. 
Beamish. 

( Crntinued nn page ~~') 

2A. MR • BUR T , Q • C , 11/9/64. 



IVIENZH:S, J ~ 

MR. BUHT: 

1;,rhether that conviction was right:? 

No, I would submit not q;1 ite that. 

OWEN, ,J: Whether the new evidence is such that a new trial 
should be granted? 

MR. BURT: Yes, or perhapt:l I could put it this way: is the 
new evidence relevant, is it fresh, has it such a 
degree of cogency that had it been led before a jury 
the conviction of guilt which the prior evidence produced 
might have been displaced? 

BAH11rlcK. C.J: Is that right? These are the thing·s, are they 
not: the Court on the apJB al is to form a view whether 
there has been a miscarriage? That is the question. 
If there has, they must allow the appeal; if there has 
not, they must dismiss it. Then you seek to introrluce 
new evidence, fresh evidence, so that the Court might 
consider that quest ion, and when the fresh evidence is 
tenc!ered there is a question about that evidence: will 
you receive that evidence? Then those questions that you 
pose are questions that go really to the reception of 
the evidence before you come to the final question: If 
you are in a Court of Criminal .Appeal, 11will you receive 
this evidence 11 , and the questions are: is it cogent, 
is it credible, if adl3ed to what was already there could 
we say that a jury might have changed the result? If 
you admit the evidence you still have a further question: 
was there a miscarriage? 

~/ER. BURT: Yes. 

B.AHHICK, C. J: I think it is very important in this case that we 
identify this because you are seeking special leave and 
you must surely point to some basic error, because we are 
not going to sit as a Court of Criminal Appeal to review 
the evidence. 

MR. BURT: Yes. I must quite clearly show that there is 
something special ah:mt this case which justifies the 
Court assuming jurisdiction with respect to it, and this 
is of course, I suppose, the major difficulty which is 
in the face of the applicant for special leave and it is 
no use the applicant attenpting to finesse this point; 
i_t must be looked at or it must be established. 

B.l\R1iJICK, C.J~ You do not wish to differ from wh:J.t I put to you 
as to what the qJ estion is and what the mechanics of 
approaching it are7 

MR. BURT: I accept it entirely. What happened in the Court 
of Criminal Appeal was that the Court of Criminal Appeal 
accepted the evidence in the sense that it looked at it, 
received it, then considered it, considered that it was 
relevant evidence, as clearly it was, considered that it 
was fresh evidence, as clearly it was, but clid not 
consider that it was sufficiently cogent. 

BJ\ HV!ICK , C. J ~ That is right. 

MR. BUllT: And really, the whole fate of the appeal turns on this 

·re/PH/lb. 
Beamish. 

requirement of cogency, and the submission that the 
applicant makes directed to establishing that this case 
is special, that it has something special about it, is 
c1epend ent upon the requirement of cogency. in its 
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application for fresh evidence. Very shortly, what the 
applicant submits is this: be concedes that the fresh 
evidence sought to be of use must be cogent but be 
submits that when you consider this question the answer 
to it cannot be arrived at merely by a consideration of 
the credit-worthiness of the person who is to give the 
fresh evidence, that the requirement of cogency goes a 
good deal deeper than that, and that in a case, which we 
submit is this case, where the fresh evidence takes the 
form of a confession to the crime of which the present 
applicant was convicted and where the confession is 
detailed and states as facts things which can be 
independently established as being true and facts which 
would not be kncnvn to any person unless he was in the 
position to observe him, and facts which could only be 
observed by a person in the vicinity of the crime at the 
time that it took place, let us say in the immediate 
vicinity, then the recp irement of cogency does not 
really d_epend on the personal credit of the person to be 
called to give the fresh evidence. The requirement of 
cogency is established then because it can be said that 
as to this the new evidentJe rmst be true. 

BJIRWICK, C. J: Suppose that after hearing a witness and after 
weighing the facts as to the matters you have mentioned, 
there are some circumstances that turn on the particular 
credibility of a witness~ suppose after considering all 
this the Court feels, "We do not think that any reasonable 
jury could accept this confession", what error is there? 

1\1IR. J3URT ~ I do not know that there is any error then. I have 
to persuade the Court that in substance what the Couft 
of Criminal Appeal did was this, that they read Cook 1 s 
confession, Cook being the person who was to give the 
fresh evidence, that they read lR rtly inconsistent 
confessions which he had made on previous occasions, 
they knew of the retraction of a c~nfession, they saw 
Cook in the box, and they came to the conclusion with 
which this applicant thoroughly agrees, that Cook is a 
person who has no credit as a witness, in the sense that 
one cannot have any confidence in believing anything that 
he says. This is really an abstract, a general 
proposition. 

BJ\P.Y'ICK, C. J: No general credit? 

MR. BURT: Yes, no general credit, and the submission that the 
applicant makes is that the Court of Criminal Appeal 
really stopped at that. They came to the conclusion 
that this is a man who, as a man, has no credit at all, 
and therefore they said it followed that the confession 
which he had made could not be cogent. If I could 
point - - -

BJ\RV!ICK, C.J~ Before you come to that, do you agree that 
the CcJUrt of Criminal Appeal asked itself the right 
question? 

I'IDl.. BlfllT: Yes, and no. T bey asked themselves the right question 
1_n terms but they did not understand the terms. 

RARVIIC':., C.,J: V/bat yau mean is that in answering it they got 

JYLR. BUH'.r ~ 

T Cj:PH/2b. 
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into some error? 

Yes. 

4. rilR • BURT , Q • C • 11/9/64. 



BAW1ICK, C.J: Can you assign this error with particularity so 
that we can see it now? 

MH. :SUHT: Gan I perhaps refer to the transcript, purely because 
I think it points up vvhat we consider to be the error. 
This is not in the appeal book, I am sorry, this is in 
the transcript of the argument, and I read it because 
it is so very shortly put. 

01'TEN, J ~ 'rhis is in the Court 0f Criminal Appeal? 

Yes. This is not reproduced. 

BAH'IICK, C.J: You consider it a convenient way of putting 
this point? 

IvTH. BUHT: Yes. because in our respectful submission this is the 
point. In the argument before the Court of Criminal 
Appeal this question was debated at some length and 
obviausly the answer to that question of the personal 
credit-worthiness CJf Cook, and discussion took place 
over many pages of transcript between myself and 
bmHanour Mr. Justice Virtue, at the end of which 
his Honaur llr. Justice Jacksan said this, at pa.ge 23~' 

"Perhaps I might adf:l to what my brother Virtue 
is saying that wben you are talking abCJut the 
cogency •..• (reads) ....•. must be an element 
concerning the cogency of t be confession." 

1'Te agree wi tb that. His Honour goes on: 

" ..• because if it could be demonstrated that it 
was a confession ••••• ( ree:1.os) ••.. , • it simply 
could not have any c·.:ysency." 

In our resp,ctful submission, that is the non sequitur 
and it goes right to the heart of this application, and 
it is a mistake which in our respectful submission 
gives this application sufficient specialness to 
justify this Ccmrt giving special leave to appeal. 

Perllaps I could illustrate what I am 
attempting to say broadly with regard to these fewts. 
If it should appear that Caok is a person who has no 
credit at all - and surely this must be conceded by 
the applicant; the applic8.nt does not look upon him 
with any favour, be is not a person being represented 
to the Court in the ordinary way of a person who asks 
the C0urt to believe him - we start by saying that 
Cook is a person utterly without personal credit but 
the applicant says that nevertheless if one looks to 
his confession one can show that he is stating as a fact 
certain facts which could not be known unless Cook had 
been in a position to observe them and facts which have 
independently been established to be true. So we say 
that whatever might be the personal credit-worthiness 
of Cook when be says this and when he says this 
throughout his confession, be is speaking the truth. 
He mir,ht lie cm every other ccmceivable occasion but 
bore he is speaking the truth. 

BilRVHCK, C.J: Let us get down to particularity. Unless you 

TC/l'H/3b. 
Beamish • 

take two things, one the position of the milk bottle, 
and some other small detail ·-
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J.1R. J31.JRT: · The milk bottle, I tbinl<:, was the most significant. 

Bl\J1WICI, C. J ~ Yes. You are saying, are you, that the jury, 
with Cook before them, say, 'liVe don't believe him 
when he said he was there that night to kill but it 
is quite true. He must have been there to have seen 
the milk bottle. a Wlly does that mean that you ought 
to disturb the verdict? V~1y does it make his confession 
cogent because the fact that be was there is not the 
cogent fact? The cogency i~ of the confession of the 
killing. Suppose for a moment that you are right to 
say that the jury might very well accept the fact that 
this makes out what be said, that he was there at some 
stage that evening or morning, but you must add, 
1'but they won't believe him that be killed"? 

Im. BURT: I think, with respect, that that is propounding too 
high a test. We would say that the jury would believe 
he was in the flat on this night. It would not then be 
necessary for the jury to go on and form a positive 
belief that in fact he did kill. The question really 
is that if the jury believes that a man of Cook's 
character and obvious propensity, and so on, was in 
this particular flat on this particular night at or 
about the time this homicide was committed, would they 
then still retain a positive finding of guilt as against 
Beamish? 

BARWICK, C. J: The strength of the Crown case 

UR. BURT: vrould be so far weakened that the jury would no 
longer feel to the degree required of the criminal law 
that Beamish did in fact kill. This way, it drives 
out the conviction of guilt which the previous evidence 
produced as against Beamish, which is the critical 
factor. 

Bl!RVTICK, C.J: The Court of Criminal Appeal said, in answer t'o 
that, "No 11 ? 

NIIL BURT~ Yes, because the Court of Criminal Appeal did not have 

TC/PH/4b. 
Beamish. 

regard to such things as the milk bottle. 

(Continued on page 8) 

6/7. MH. BURT) Q.C. ll/9/64. 



MR. BURT (Continuing): They mentioned it, so to speak, in 
passing but they say, "Well, this may hc:ve happened 
on another occAsion." 

BARWICK, C .,J: Perhaps you might take us to thAt. I hRve 
read the judgment, but of course not with your 
assistance. 

MR. BURT: I could either take the court very quickly through 
the confession or would you like to be taken to the 
milk bottle? 

BAHWICK, C.J~ I think this is the point in it: you are 
SAying thnt this is a special case, you are entitled 
to special leave, not becAuse you can point to an 
error in principle in the court below but because 
you cAn say thnt in 8nswering the right question 
they have erred in that they have not given sufficient 
weight, or you may say any weight,tb! some facts 

established,which do not depend on the correct - - -

MR. BURT~ I think I would put it thPt they really did not 
ask themselves the right question. The question 
they asked was: is this a cogent witness? not~ 
is this cogent evidence? To thAt degree we would 
say they really asked themselves the wrong question. 

BARWICK, C.J: I think you ought to go direct to those passages 
that you have which you think bear that out. 

MR. BURT: Very well; I could start perhaps, and I think it 
has to be done in this way, by going to the confession 
of Cooke. 

BARWICK, C.J: Cannot we do it in the ~udgment; that is where 
the error must show up. 

NIR. BURT: Very well, Sir. If I CPn start with the evidence 
of the milk bottle, take the court directly to that, 
it starts in Cooke's confession at p.326 in Vol.2 
line 20 Fmd the following where he said, "While I 
wns crouching behind these bushes I heard the milk man 
walk up around the corner ••.. (re8ds) .... and I 
noticed on the floor a bottle of milk." (p.327 line 3) 

OVffiN, J: Is this the statement made by Cooke to the police? 

~1P. BUPT: This is the statement which wos made by Cooke to 
the solicitors. 

BARWICK, C.J: This is your fresh evidence? 

MR. BURT: Yes. 

BARWICK, C.J: This is annexed to the solicitor's evidence? 

OVIEN, J: He did also give evidence before the Court of 
Criminal Appeal? 

MR. BURT: Yes, he gave some sort of evidence there. At line 5 
on p.327 he said, "The door hinges were on the left 
hand side .... (rends) •... the bottle of milk was 
definitely inside the door." The significance of the 
bottle of milk only becomes apparent when one looks 
at the evidence of Blight which wss in the form of an 

AB/MW/lb. 
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affidavit Rnd formed part of the papers which 
constituted the petition. The evidence of Blight 
on this point is-line 32 on p.336 where he said, 
11 1 Attended nt the office of the Sunny West·Dairies 
and ascertained the name of the milk man who 
delivered milk to the flat of Jillian Brewer. I 
WAS informed that his nnme was George northcott and 
that he was now a farmer at Beacon." I may say in 
passing that where Blight gives this sort of 
hearsay information the case was fought on the 
bDsis that thj s part of it was not disputed by 
the Crown. At line 36 on p.336 Blight· said, "I 
contacted the said George Northcott .•.• (reads) •••• 
in the back door on the floor behind." · ( p. 337 line 3) 
The significance of that, I suppose, is readily 
apparent - that the bottle was there but that it 
would not have been there at that time of the morning 
on any other night. 

BARVTICK, C.J: But it would have been there at some other time 
on any other night? 

MR. BURT: It would hAve been there after 4 o'clock in the 
morning on any other night. 

OWEN, J: ••.• looked at the evidence of the trial 

VlR. BURT: No. He remembers this because he was questioned, 
obviously, concerning it when the police first made 
their inquiries back in 1959, but this was not 
of course of any significance in the evidence of 
Beemish and nothing had been said Bbout the milk 
bottle in the evidence of Beamish. The importance 
the applicants placed upon it rightly or wrongly 
was that this established thnt Cooke, had he gone 
into the flAt nt 3 o'clock on this morning, would 
h2ve found a bottle of milk. 

BARWICK, C.J: I was ahout to say to you that had he gone 
into the flat on any other morning at a different 
time he would have found a milk bottle, so this 
depends upon whether you believe that Cooke went 
there this night at 3 a.m., the milk bottle was 
not there - - -

MR. BURT: I submit it does. The other hypothesis, I suppose, 
is that he must be aware he went into the flat at 
3 o'clock - --

BARWICK, C.J: You start off with the fact that he is, and 
you are seeking to say he cannot be inventing on 
this occasion, because he found a bottle of milk 
and he says he found it at 3 o'clock on this day. 
The fact is that if he had gone in at any other 
time later he would have found the bottle of milk. 

~ffi. BURT: Any time between 4 and 5 in the morning; this 
must be conceded. 

BARWICK, C.J: So he does not corroborate, does he, at all; 
it still depends on his admission, "I went there 
at 3 a.m."? 

MR. BURT: With respect I agree it does not estoblish 
positively that he was there but I would not with 
greAt respect say thAt it was of such little 

AB/MW/ 2b. 
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probative value as your Honour would suggest, because 
there he is said to be inventing a story that he was 
in the flat at 3 a.m. but it does with great 
respect appear to be a gre0t coincidence that the 
bottle of milk he speaks about being in the. position 
it was,was in fnct in that position on that morning 
at that time and on no other morning at that time. 

BAHWICK, C.J: He is not shown to have known the time the 
milk man normally went? 

MR. BURT: No. 

BARV!ICK, C.J: So when he s::lid, "I found a bottle of milk 
there when I CRme in at 3 a.m. on this night", he 
does not make this night special as far as he is 
concerned? 

I·:JH. BURT: It mAy he, so to speak, a fluke, he may have fluked 
it and this, I suppose, is a comrent that can be 
mAde with respect to other items of evidence upon 
which this application so strongly relies. 

If I could mention the hus driver for 
a moment, hut it is the cumulative effect of the 
flukes which are perhaps of some significance. 
However, this is the way it was put to the Court of 
Criminal Appeal. 

BAI\.WICK, C.J: And this is the same door which I think it 
was established not to he unlocked that he went 
through when he said here, "I pushed the door open". 

MR. BURT: It was never established th8t it was locked. 

BARWICK, C.J: It was normally locked? 

Mn. BURT: It was established thnt this was the custom that 
it wns normally locked, and it was as a fact locked 
in the morning. 

BARir!ICK, C.J: At the trial, of course, Beamish gave evidence 
of hnving unlocked it. 

MR.. BURT: That is so, <md Dinnie gave evidence that the normal 
custom was to keep it locked, but there was no 
evidence one wny or the other as to whether it was 
locked on this particular nirht, as a fact. 

BAR·iiiCK, C .J: You disregard Beal'lish? Beamish had given evidence 
thrt it was locked. 

MR. ImRT: 

BARWICK, 

Yes. 

C. J: That is the 
whether you would 
of the bus at the 
in the judgment. 

milk bottle. I was wondering 
care to refer us to the driver 
same time and look at both points 
Follow your own course. 

MR. BURT: If I could e·o from this to the judgment. The point 
is dealt with by the Chief Justice at p.524 line 30 
when he saic1, "But tho episode of the milk man, ~~r. 
Burt says, so clearly establishes that Cooke was in 
the area that the whole strength of the Crown esse 
sgainst Reamish is affected once it is accepted. 

AB/r.TN I 3b. 
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I connot follow such an argument." That is all 
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thnt his Honour the Chief Justice ever says about 
the milk bottle. 

It is dealt with by his Honour Mr. Justice 
Jackson e1t p.544 line 48 where he says, "Cooke's 
reference to the bottle of milk inside the door 
.•.• (reads) •.•. outweigh in my mind the overwhelming 
evidence that it ts a fabrication." (p.545 line 9) 

BAEWICK, C.J~ What is wrong with that? 

]ll.P. HURT~ The only criticism one could make of that is that 
he could not have recollected this having happened 
at 3 o'clock on a previous occasion, but I still 
concede the force of what your Honour the Chief 
Justice has said, and it may really be what his 
Honour Mr. Justice Jackson is saying in a different 
way~ that it could well be Cooke had been in the 
vicinity of these flats on another occasion; he may 
have broken into the flat on another occasion after 
4 a.m. and found the milk bottle; not knowing it had 
been placed very recently before he broke in he 
may h8ve assumed it had been there for some hours ; and 
on thjs occasion, putting the time of his visit at 
3 o'clock,he simply fluked the milk bottle being 
there. One must concede the possibility. The time 
of the homicide in Brewer was established sometime 
between 2 and G a.m., just in passing, from memory. 

BARWICK, C.J: Could I ask this~ Cooke would know that before 
he made these statements? 

I think it must be fair to say that because 
would have been one of the things published. 
Honour Mr. Justice Virtue deals with the milk 
at the bottom of p.552. 

that 
His 
bottle 

OVillN, J: Was there any reference at the first trial to the 
existence of the milk bottle? 

MR. BURT~ None whatever. 

]ARWICK, C.J~ This is material produced now by the appellant, 
the fact that there was a milk bottle? 

]\m. BURT: Yes. 

OWEN, J: I am wondering whether, in gl Vlng evidence of the 
state of the room and the flat, n reference was 
made to the milk bottle? 

l'm. BURT: No. Extensive photographs were taken but no 
photopraph appears of this particular part of the 
flat. 

JtB/MN/ 4b. 
:Be amish. 

At the bottom of p.552 his Honour Mr. 
Just j_ ce Virtue says, "It is true that rather surprising 
coincidences have been pointed out, in particular 
that relating to the electric frypan and the milk 
bottle. But all are capable of explanation consistent 
with his lack of complicity in this crime." 

His Honour does not go any further than 
to say what the explEm8tion might have been. 
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AB/MW/5h. 
Beamish. 

That is all perhaps thAt one can usefully 
say concerning the milk bottle. If I can go now to 
what the learned trial judge r-md members of the 
Court of Appeal described as the other surprising 
coincidence, namely the fry pan, that appears in 
the confession at p.327 line 24. This was indeed 
a startling coincidence; no one knew anything about 
an electric fry pan; there was no evidence of an 
electric fry pan at all. The solicitor for Beamish 
knew nothing Pbout a fry pon, but At the hearing in 
the Court of Criminal Appeal the Crown was good 
enoufh to produce photofraphs that had been taken 
of the interior of the flat which had not been used 
at the trial of Beamish. 

(Continued on page 13) 
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MR. BURT ·(Continuing): In the course of that, they produced this 
photograph. The copy I have is unmarked, but it was 
te:rrl. ered in the Court of Criminal Appeal. It shows an 
electric frypan suqstantially in the position in which 
Cooke described it. One can just see it. The photograph 
was taken on the morning after the h.nnicide. 

liJE:NZIJo:S, J.: Are you indicating, between Cooke and Beam ish, 

MR. BURT: Only to the extent t hn t Cooke SfW s so. 

(In answer to Owen, J.) They would never have 
seen one another in person, and Beamish was deaf and dumb. 
I do not think there is any question of there being any 
communication between them at· all. 

MENZIES, J No attention was paid at all t·J that by ••••• 

~ffi • BURT : No • 

BAW ICK, C. J. : Where is this? 

MR. BURT: You can see it on the right-hand side of the picture. 
You cannot see all of it. You can see enough of it to 
identify the instrument. It is on the right-hand side 
of the draining portion of the sink. Can your Honour 
see it? 

BAR'~Il CK, C • J. : No, I do not . 

MR. BURT: It is on the extreme right of the picture. I 
ano ·ther copy. (Produced) If one looks at the 
refrigerator, one sees that the outline of the 
cuts the frypan. 

have 

refrigerator 

]!JEHZn;s, J.: In the shade of the refrigerator. 

EA1i.1.'TICK, C. J. : Now, I see it. It has a frypan cover. 

1.1R • BURT : Yes . 

EAH\IfiCK, C .J.: Of course, there are not many other places you 
could put it. If you owned a frypan, it would be used 
on many more occasions than this night. 

MR. BURT: It might have been an inspired guess for him to have 
said there was a frypan there. 

BARPICK, C.J.: He might have been there on other occasions. 

lviR. BURT: It is also far more likely, I think, to say he saw 
the frypan on s:>me other occasion. This is a distinct 
possibility, but, in our respectful submission, it is 
to say that that is shown as something fairly relevant. 

KITTO, J.: It is not on the draining section of the sink. 

lillR. BURT: No. As his Honour, Mr. Justice Jackson, pointed out 

B'r/PE/lb. 
lleamish. 

in his reas:ms, it is not directly on the draining portion 
of the sink Whether it had been moved prior to the 
photograph is not clear. I suggest it may have been 
because one can look at the photograph taken by the 
police of the interior of the flat, from which it clearly 
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appears that certain things were moved because they are 
in a different -position. Nobody paid any attention to 
that point until it came out of Cooke's confession. 
Prior to that, it had no particular significance, or 
any significance, but what we are saying is that this 
is yet another remarkable co-incidence. 

BAHVJICK, C,J.: You could say: ''This man is fabricating it, He 
has a very remarkable memory. He is a prowler, who, as 
like as not, had been thruugh this flat on some occasion. 
He is anxious to connect himself with this occurrence. 
He wants to lend colour to the story, and he has 
sufficient 0apacity to realize the significance of 
inserting some circumstantial details. 11 

MR. BURT: Yes. 

BAII.YICK, C .J,: He has a very good memory, so that the mentioning 
of the matter, in the mind of that kind of man, could be 
thought to be a good point. 

l\1R. BUE'l' : That is so • 

BAl~1HCK, C .J.: Vfhy must one then regard this as a co-incidence? 
To say i-t is a co-incidence is to say there was something 
unusual in this - in this man's having said that night 
the frypan was there. 

HR, BUET: It is unusual to this case that it is there. 

BAJ?WICK, C.J.: On the only occasion it is there{ 

l\rm_. BURT: There isno evidence that it is there on other occasions. 

B'J'/PE/2b. 
Be:::.mish. 

I think it is a .reasonable inference to draw that it may 
well have been there on other occasions. There is no 
evidence that it was always kept there, butt he strength 
of the applicant's case, with respect, does not reside in 
any individual co-incidence. It has a cumulative weight. 

I think perhaps I could leave the other point 
for the moment and go to another quite startling co­
incidence, which does not have the effect of placing 
Cooke in the flat on the evening of the homicide, but 
at least it clearly places him in the vicinity, in the 
area, on the particular night of the homicide. 

This is the evidence given by Cooke in his 
statement relating to the bus driver. This, again, was 
not regarded as evidence particularly important by the 
Court of Criminal Appeal. The evidence relating to it 
is in Cooke Is statement at p o323, at line 18. He hns described 
his nocturnal prowlings on the evening of the murder. 
He was around Peppermint Grove drinking milk and whisky, 
or according to what he happened to find. He walks back 
up the hill towards these flats. He decides to go home, 
or at least catch a bus. He says: 

"I caught this bus and got off at ~Hlliams Road 
••... (reads) •.... Colin Lennox. il 

Colin Lennox is a private inquiry agent. 

"At -that stage I intended to knock off a few 
houses in that area." 
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What Cooke has said is ni caught a bus late 
in the evening, and, on this particular night - I do not 
know what date it was - - -" Cooke never knew what date 
it was apart from the fact that it was in December, just 
before Christmas. 

He said: 11 I caught this bus, and I will tell 
you who the driver of the bus was.;; That information 
was checked out by Blight, and he deals with it in his 
affidavit at p.336. He said: 

"I interviewed Alan Rober Balmer who now resides 
" .•.. (reads) .•..• the driver of one of the late 
buses." 

BARFICK, C. J.: That does not mean he was not on the night before 
or the night after. 

MR. BURT: No, Sir. This again leaves open the possibility that 
there was some other night. 

BAICi1ICK, C.J.: Or he may have known, as the witness said, the 
driver on this route. He was on for considerable periods 
at night. 

l.fl{. BU1tT: Yes. 

BT/PE/3b. 
Beamish. 

Again, it may have been a transposition in point 
of t ir;J.e. It may have been that he was on an other night. 
Again, with great respect, this is yet another fluke 
that he does not know the date of the Brewer murder, 
other than that it is towards the end of December. 

Whatever the date was, on that particular night, 
he was in the area and caught a bus, and this was the man 
driving it. If you go back to the records of time sheets, 
this is checked out as being correct. It is simply 
another independent coincidence, but the c:ate really :is 
fixed beyond any room LH error, I think, when you see 
what it is that Cooke next does. 

Cooke says he got into the bus and went towards 
Perth, decided tu steal a car with a vievv to coming back 
to Brookdale Flats to kill this girl he had already seen 
there that evening. This partly appears in his statement 
and in the evidence he gave before the Court of Criminal 
Appeal, but, to mak~ his story true, of course, it was 
necessary to show, that he did, in fact, steal a car 
that night. This next fact is established. 

Cooke says, in his statement, that he stole a 
car. He tells where he stole it, and, what is perhaps 
even more important, where he left it later. This appears 
at p.324 at line 10. He said: 

"I turned left and went up that street and 
then turned right into Davis Road. 11 

This is prowling around the Nedlands area. 

"I there prowled around and found a Holden car 
••.•. (reads) ..... I drove back to Cottesloe. 11 
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BT/Pl:/4b. 
Beamish. 

He then told us what he did. If I could take 
the Court then to p.33l, at line 18, he says: 

"I abA.ndoned the car in Alexander Eoad, 
Rivervale, between Surrey Road and Kooyong 
Hoad. It was parked facing south. 11 

This is checked out by Blight. At p. 335 of 
his affidavit, he then said: 

"In order to ascertain whether any vehicle 
had been stolen from the Nedlands area •... 
•... (reads) ..•.• which is the next street 
to the east. 11 

(Continued on page 17.) 
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HR. BURT ( c0nt inuing): That again is, I supp0se, capable 0f 
explanati0n by saying that it is quite true that 0n 
this particular nccasinn, 0n this night, he did steal 
a m0t0r car, and nne can further say, I suppnse, that 
althnugh be dnes n0t kn0w the date up0n which he st0le 
the car, be may have read the f0ll0wing rnnrning that there 
had been a murder and he merely assPciated twr~ events 
t0gether wi th0ut being c0nscic>us 0f the precise day 
0f the m0ntb. But here agsin, with great respectt this 
is an0ther startling c0incidence. This is a fact 
stated by C00ke in his c0nfessi0n which can be 
independently established tn be true and which w0uld 
nnt 0therwise be knc>wn, and it is ennugh in nur respedt­
ful submissinn at least t0 say - and I think the members 
0f the C0urt 0f Criminal Appeal were prepared tr' g0 
this far, nr at least his H0nnur Mr.Justice Jacks0n was­
that it was en0ugh tn be able t0 say that in all 
pr0bability Cnnke was in the vicinity 0f these flats 0n 
this particular night and that he did in fact leave 
"n this particular bus and he did in fact steal the 
mnt0r car. 

Even if nne takgs it n0 further than that, 
if nne leaves it at that fnr the rn0ment, that in 0ur 
respectful submissi,,n establishes a great sub-stratum 
nf truth in the cnnfessinn. It is the base 0f the 
cnnfessi0n in the factual sense, in the chrf'nf'lf'gical 
sense. 

BAHWICK, C.J: Are y0u nr't putting it tM' high, Mr.Burt? All 
it establishes is that he was in the area. 

lVTH. BUliT: That is s0, Sir. 

BARWICK, C. J: When y0u begin wi th0ut the premise ynu dn n0t 
believe the rest nf what he says., h0w dnes it supp0rt 
what he says? 

nffi. Bill~T: Well, it supp0rts him t0 that extent. 

BARWICK, C.J: That he was there? 

MR. BURT: Yes. 80 the way I w0uld put it 0n behalf nf the 
applicant is tr' say this: That this cr'nfessi' n, when 
checked 0ut with the facts independently established, 
at least takes us tr the stage at which we can say 
with s0me c0nfidence that C00ke was in the area 0n this 
particular night. 

PM/H/lb. 
Beamish. 

Nnw, I dr nr·t f0r the mnment take it any 
further than that, but I submit that nne gets t0 that 
pnint with quite a high degree nf cnnfidence r1n the 
cnnfessi0n nf Cn"ke. 

I agree that then nne must c0me t0 a narr0wer 
area nf particularity, really, and I suppnse nne must 
ask then: Is there anything in the cnnfessirn which, 
independently lined up with the facts, the nther facts 
that we kn0w, w0uld establish that C00ke was in the flat 
- perhaps we C"uld say at any time, firstly, with0ut 
reference t0 thj_s particular nccasi0n; and when y0u say 
that, I think the answer must be: Yes, nn 0ne nccasinn 
"r annther Cnnke has und0ubtedly been in this flat. 
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Nnw, I dn n0t think anynne wnuld really 
quarrel with that. He draws a plan nf the flat which 
is substantially accurate, and I think it enables nne 
tn say that nn sr'me 0ccasi0n 0r anPther Cnnke was in 
the flat. Sn we then have perhaps twn pnints, tw0 
general cnnclusi0ns that we can rBach with a g0nd degree 
nf c0nfidence: that he was in the area that particular 
night, and 0n snrne 0ther r'ccasif'n, nr 0n s0me 0Ccasi0n 
he has been in the flat. 

BARWICK, C.J: That is adding apples and pears, is it n0t? 

JVJR. BUR T: Yes, I agree with that, 0ir. · We n0w must bring it 
really t0gether tn endeav0ur t0 sh0w that there is 
rea~0n t0 believe that he was in the flat at nr 
ab0ut the time nf the murder. Of c0urse, that is the 
next stage 0f particularity. In respect t0 that we 
dP rely very heavily up0n the evidence nf the milk 
bnttle, appreciating that it is subject t0 all s0rts nf 
c0mrnents; nevertheless this is what we rely upnn as 
being a cnincidence which, when added tn the basis that 
we have already created, dnes enable rne t0 say, if n0t 
prSsihly,- believ~_n,'' tha-~ Crr~:c w::::.o there, at least that 
sufficient appears here tn discharge the cnnvicti0n 
nf guilt referable tn Beamish. 

BARWICK, C.J: But why? I d0 nr•t f<"'llnw that fr•r the mnment. 
Yru begin with a very strnng case against Beamish, 
and n0thing that y0u have said abnut the milk bnttle 
casts any dnubt up0n the assertinn 0f Beamish that he 
npened the dn0r which was 0therwise clnsed. 

lVfR. BlmT: That is s0, Sir. 

BARWICK, C.J: Sn that tn get tn the stage that at snme stage in 
that evening, if yr•u like, C0nke was in the flat, dnes 
nnt bear 0n the cngency 0f the evidence fnr the Cf'nVict­
irn at the trial, surely. 

l'IIR. BURT: Well, it well might" It is hard perhaps tn is0late a 
particular piece nf evidence and f0rm a cnnclusinn abnut 
it. I quite agree with ynur H0n0ur that Beamish said 
that the dnnr was lncked and he 0pened it in a certain 
way, but at the same time, nf cnurse, Beamish says 
0riginally that he went nut nf the flat withnut lncking 
the dn0r. 

BA11WICK, C .J: That is all right if he says that and Cnnke came 
in and 0pened the dn0r; that simply makes Cnnke's 
presence there nf n•· mnment - at that time the murder 
had been cnmmitted. 

l'llR. BURT: This is 7 nne must cnncede, a pnssibili ty, but what 
we were putting t0 the C0~t nf Criminal Appeal was 
that these are really jury matters. 

BARWICK, C.J: The cnurt is asked tr say that in its view there 
has been a miscarriage. It has tn have the respnnsib­
ility nf that. 

MR. BURT: Yes. 

BARWICK, C.J: And included in that, nf cnurse, is the weighing 
f0r itself nf the cngency nf this evidence. 

PM/H/2b. 
Beam ish. 
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MR. BURT: Yes, I agree, Sir. 

N~w, at the stage nf the milk b0ttle, 
chr <'n<'lngically r 0f c0ur se, if Crnke is speaking the 
truth, hehas entered the flat. We nnw have t~ have 
a l0r>k at his cnnfessinn t0 see what he did having 
entered the flat and t~ what extent that lines itself 
up with the facts that have been independently establi~heJ. 

I dn n0t wish t0 spend a great deal nf time 
0n this, f<"'r tuis reasr'n: that t0 a very large extent 
what he says he did when he g0t intn the flat d0es line 
up with the facts that have been already established. 
But I appreciate the difficulty in it, because these 
were facts which were publicised in rne way r'r annther 
abnut the time Af the trial rf Beamish and we are n0w 
in an area in which the Cr0wn can say - - -

UWEN, J: I may be wr0ng, but I th0ught his explanati"n nf the 
blr>~s he struck and the stabbings and s~ nn were ••... 

iVIR. BURT: All I can say~ with resnect. is that they fitted in 
a g<'r>d deal better than Beamish' s did. And his 
descripti0n 0f the blrws, in nur respecful submissi0n, 
was substantially accurate. 

OWEN, J: The descripti1'n r'f the furniture was wr~ng,was it n0t? 

MR. BUf{T: Well, it is rather equiv0cal, Sir, cnncerning that, 
because he was asked t0 describe the furniture and 
he described it, I think, as perind stuff, r.r w0rds t0 
that effect. As a matter nf fact, I think that wnuld be 
an accurate descriptinn nf furniture in Brewer's 
bedrr><'m 1 but it wnuld be a C0mpletely inaccurate 
deacriptirn ,nf the furniture in the lnunge nf the flat. 
Whether Cr0ke was referring tn bedrr0m furniture nr 
lnunge furniture did n0t appear. But? with respect, it 
did n°t matter much, because quite clearly I think 
withnut any dnubt at all Cn0ke had been in the flat at 
0ne time rr annther, because he can nr't nnly draw the 
gr0und plan but he can place the furniture in it. Of 
c0urse, he may have been able tc' draw the grnund plan by 
being in the upstairs flat and kn0wing that it is likely 
t0 be reprnduced, but he had actually been in the - - -

BARWICK, c.·J": 80 t0 say that he had und0ubtedly been there 0n 
snme 0ccasi0n wr~ld weaken what he says, the effect nr 
the weight 0f what he says he saw 0n this evening. 

!VIR. BUHT: Well, nn, with respect. 

BAHWICK, C.J": Because he speaks 0f n0thing which can be said 
0nly tn have existed that night in that flat - nnt 

,1(. BUH T: 

even the milk b0ttle. The frying pan, the P''Si ti0n nf 
the furniture, the milk b0ttle, these I wnuld say almnst 
any night he came in he c~uld see. 

Any night he came in at a different time. 

BARWICK, C. J : It dPes n0t matter whether it was that time 0r 
an"ther time. 

fv'.iR. BUHT: It wnuld, with respect, Sir, If he had c·me in at 

PM/H/3b. 
Beamish. 

3 r> 1 clnck nn any 0ther night, he wnuld nr·t have fnund a 
milk bnttle, 
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BARWICK, C .J: Yes, that is sn. 

MR. BURT: Whether he wruld have frund a frying pan is unkn~wn. 
He ala~ speaks nf a purse that he fnund when he came 
int0 the flat. 

BARWICK, C.J: That is nrt independently established. 

MR. BURT: A zipp purse. Nn, it is rather 0dd in a way that 
it is nrt, because nne W~"'Uld have t hnught perhaps that 
the pnlice inquiries wnuld have extended at least 
tr taking an inventnry rf what was in the flat. 
Cn0ke says, "I 0pened a purse • 11 He tells us what 
was in it. But there is nn nther evidence nne way Pr 
the f'ther. It is nnt c0ntradicted n0r is it cr'nfirmed. 

Sf' far as his descriptirn nf the actual 
hrmicide is cnncerned, there are features abnut it 
which make it infinitely mnre cnnvincing,really, than 
Beamish's accf'unt- n0t that I am suggesting this 
sh0uld be judged as a c0mpetitirn between the twn. 

The twr- things which rather impress 0ne 
a b0ut Qf'lnke 's descriipti0n 01' the h0micide is that he 
describes the twn blnws with a hatchet acr0ss the 
thr0at, which in itself is nnt terribly significant 
and it may well have been published at the time 0f the 
0riginal crime, 'but what he d 0es say in his crnfessi0n 
is that, having carried nut the attack with the hatchet, 
he then 'breaks nff, diSp0Ses 0f the hatchet, has a 
brttle nf lemonade and generally spends a bit nf time 
ar0und the flat, and then returns tr the attack with 
srme scissnrs. 

This 0f c--·urse is quite a macabre stnry 
tr tell. His H0nnur the Chief Justice really relied 
up0n this as printing rut the unlikelihnnd nf the strry, 
and saying, "This is really t0n much. One cannf't 
believe events W"Uld have happened in this way." .l:lut 
why I submit that it is a piece nf evidence which is 
c~rrrbnrative is this: that it is an inherently 
unlikely stf'ry, sn that if snme0ne was telling it 
s~mply in the h0pe 0f being believed, it is an unlikely 
st0ry t0 have tnld. 

BARWICK, C,J: Yes, but y0u have gnt tr take intn accnunt there 
that he was telling it with the expectatir-n nf being 
believed, 

MR. BURT: Wel~, let us supprse that he was. What is sr>mewhat 
remarkable abnut it is that it fits the medical 
evidence whereas Beamish's account never really did. 
The medical evidence shrws that there was a perceptible 
lapse 0f time between the hatchet attacks and the 
stabbing attacks. Dr. Pears0n I think put it in the 
area 0fhalf an he ur - I d0 n0t kn0w whether he 
quantified it in the end. But there was a perceptible 
lapse 0f time, the reasrning behind it being that there 
had been n0 bleeding frrm the stabbing W~"'Unds. 

OWEN, J: The blnws rf the hatchet did the killing ? 

1\'IR, BURT: The blnws nf the hatchet. Death wnuld have nccurred I 
think half an hnur after the hatchet blnws. Yet there 
was n0 bleeding frr'r,J the stab wrunds. This led the 

PM/H/4b. 
Beamish. 
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d0ct0r tP say that there had been this effluxi0n 0f 
time between the twr· attacks, and this is what C0nke 
says in his c0nfessi'n. This again, in 0ur submissihn, 
is an independent cnnfirmati0n 0f the truth 0f what 
he says. It d0es nr't establish anything,! agree, but 
it dnes independently establish at least the cnnsistency 
nf what he is saying with the facts. 

BARWICK, C,J: .But the C0urt nf Criminal Appeal c0nsidered all 
that and f0rmed its nwn view. 

MR. J3URT: With respect, they did nr-t c0nsider it, Sir, 'l'his is 

PM/H/5b, 
Beamish, 

really why we say the case is special, They appr0ached 
it rather the r-ther way. They said, "We have seen 
C0nke. We kn0w the type 0f man he is. We knnw 
he has made inc~"nsistent statements. He may well 
be grinding an axe in an eff0rt tn set up a case 0f 
Cf'mpulsive insanity, and s0 0n, He is beynnd the sancti0n 
0f an 0ath. But, 0ath 0r n" 0ath, he is a 00ngenital 
liar, he is a rnmancer", and s0 0n, 

(Cnntinued r'n page 22) 
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MR. BURT (Continuing): All of this 'Ne can agree with in general 
terms, and the Court of Criminal Appeal, in our 
respectful submiss1on, started the consideration of the 
case really from that end and have come to the 
conclusion that Cooke could not be believed as a man, 
these things really did not fi.gure in their deliberations 
on the matter at all. 

Th1ENZL:f), J: 'rbey did regard it of course as coincidence, 
taking the hatch into account .• ". (inaudible). 
That event they referred to, but can you tell me 
one or two tbin,o:s abCJut this milk bottle? I have 
forgotten the a~tual facts of the case, but it was 
put throue;h a hatch on to the floor? 

111T1 .• BURT ~ Yes. 

l\'[:::1T:?T8f), J: And when it was put through by the milkman the 
door. was closed? 

liiR. BURT: Yes. 

lflEl{?T_,,:~:;, eT: And he puts it through the door, on the inside of 
the door? 

MR. BURT : 'rhrough a gap. 

~illNZIBS, J: And it goes on to the floor behind the door? 

11111\ .• IlURT: Yes. 

NIENZI:Cf5, J: When Cooke comeR along, according to him the d:)()r 
is open? 

~R. BURT: No. 

MiNZD~:s, eT: Does he not say that the door was open and he 
pushed it further? 

~m. BURT: Unlocked, I think. 

MEN/iiES, J: I thought he said that the door was open and he 
pushed it further. How could that door have been 
pushed open with the milk bottle still standing there? 

MR. BURT: He pushes the milk bottle with it as it goes around, 
and he bears the scraping as it goes around. 

M:I:;N'UES, J: I thought he said the door was open. 

BARY:H:K., C.J: VThat is the page, again? 

W':l.. DURT: Page 326 at line 28, the third last line: 

TC/PH/lc. 
Beamish. 

11 1 then started quietly pushing the door open and 
I felt something scrape tbe floor." Unlocked. 
"I bad no watch on and this time was an estimate.11 

The Court of Criminal Appeal really did not, in our 
respectful submission - this is something we have to 
make good on the fncts if tbe Court will bear the 
appeal - they did not really give any proper 
consideration to these tbings. They started at a 
point which we would have been willing to concede, 
that Coo}€ is a liar. 
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WINDJ~y_c:?, J: What led to this emphauis about the milk bottle in 
this confession? 

~11\. BUH'r: Nothing, Sir. 

WIJHJEYCH, ,T ~ You see, one would almost think that the man making 
tbe statement thought that some attention was going to 
be given to the presence of this milk bottle. If you 
look at page 327 ~ 0 The bottle of milk was definitely 
inside the door. 11 I see the significance of the milk 
bottle but I am wondering why so much sig11ificanc e appears 
to bave been attached to it by the man making the 
confess~on at the time. 

MH. BUHT: It is very hard to say ,of course. One has to have 
regard -to that in the context of the confession as a 
whole. His Honour the Chief Justice to some extent 
was led to a disbelief of the statement because of the 
great detail tta t Cook;) goes into, particularly with 
reference to matters which are rather collateral to the 
central matter, for instance that he bought a sweet 
called a 11 Cherry Ripe" and jay-walked across the road, 
and so on, but thi:::; st::::.tc::':::c~-t 1;,.:;,s simply given by Cooke 
unpromp-ted, so to spea~::. 

\''!INDI:Y:CH, J: Yes. He goes into a lot of detail about a lot of 
things out I was struck by tbe phrase, "The bottle of 
milk was definitely inside the door", as if some 
q_uestion had arisen somewhere as to where the bottle of 
milk was. Nothing may turn on it at all but it is 
not the way in which one would ordinarily expect a 
person to say that there was a bottle of milk inside. 

IviR. BURT: I cannot really throw any light cm it, Sir. There 
is a negative fact which may be of some significance 
here, too, that it was never suggested· that Beamish 
wore gloves in the carrying out of whatever be may have 
done that night. There is no evidence of that at all. 
The evi clence of Cooke in his confession is that be 
alwu.ys wore gloves. One can perbaps accept that as 
being true because he bad such a long and undetected 
career of crime. Vfbcm be was ultimately arrested he 
wo_s wearing gloves, which appears in the book, and it 
may then be significant to note that tbere was not one 
fingerprint in· this flat on tbe morning after the 
homicide, There were :,rewer' s ~ but no strange 
fingerprints anywhere in tbe flat, which necessitates 
tbe conclusion, I think, that whoever did this crime 
was wearing gloves. It is inconceivable that anyone 
ccmlcl have gone t brough the flat and done all the things 
which were done on tbis occasion wi thCJut wearing gloves. 
There are other matters to be developed of course if the 
appeal - - -

WI liDJ~Y:H, .J: CooP€ also confessed in some detail to a crime which 
be def~nitely did conmit? 

MR. BUR'r: To three, I think. 

vn: HDEYI:Il., J : I was thinking of Anderson as one. 

MH. BURT: Anderson is a disputed one, Sir. 'I' hat is the butt 
of the apr:eaL But having mentioned it, your Honour -

vrnmEYBU, ,J: Do not bother about it. That is the one which he 
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retracted, in a sense, retracted his confession? 
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MR. BURT ~ Yes. 

BARYJICK, C. J: Along the line o:f :;'Ir. Just ice VJindeyer 1 s 
thinking about the milk bottle, it is rather 
remarkable that when you look at the photograph he 
selects the frying pan for mention, the frying pan, 
which you expect to be always there and perhaps 
likely to be in the washing up place, but there are 
other thine;s there that are mobile and not always there, 
but be does not mention anything that one could say was 
only in that flat on that night in that position. 

MH. BURT ~ We could not establish the position, to start with. 

BARWlCK, C.J: There is a photograph. 

MR. BURT: With respect, Sir, if you look at the other 
photographs taken by the police, both of which 
purport to be photographs to be taken showing the 
inside of the flat, it is quite apparent that they 
had been moved. 

BARWICK, C.J: That may be, but he does not mention anything 
to iW:l ich attention could have been given to establish 
that they were things that were there in that position 
only that night. 

Ml1. BURT: No, that is so, and I suppose really, to try to put 
that in its correct perspective, would this not be 
true of any room in a house, that by and large things 
are in the same position always? He cauld say, 11 1 saw 
it on Tuesday and I saw it on Thursday". But, put the 
other way, thoro is nath}ne he sayA concerning the internal 
arrangement of t11e bedroom which is really wrong. When 
he describes, for instance, the curtains on the north 
window of the bedroom and says there was a chink between 
them and you could see through them, this is independently 
established as being correct. ii{hen he sa.ys that the 
other curtains which faced the west had a chink at one 
end because of some defect in the railing, this is 
independently established as being correct, and one can 
go through the entire -

BA.R1nr:::, c. J: He may have been through this flat more than once. 

~IR. BUilT~ Yes. It really brings us to the second point which 
migbt arise if the appeal is permitted, and that is as to 
the extent to which, lf at all, the applicant, positioned 
as this applicant was, could use evidence of Cooke's 
criminal propensity as being relevant to the cogency 
of the present confession. This is one of the matters 
which is mentioned in the notice of motion and is dealt 
with at some length by his Honour the Chief Justice. 
He writes an·appendix to his judgment, I think one 
thing one can conclude at least from the reasons of His 
Honour the Chief Justice is that this evidence is quite 
irrelgvant when yCJu nre considering the cogency of a · 
confession. In our respectful submission, that would 
be wrong to say that. It has, in our submission, a 
very, very great probative value. 

ow::::;N, J: The other two Judges expressed no opinion about that, 
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clicl they? 
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Tm. mm'J' : No • 

BJ\RWIC~~, CotT: I do not know whether it really arises but is it 
y0ur proposition thnt v1hen you have got fresh evidence in 
a criminal appeal you can g:L ve evidence of propensity? 

MR. BUic"1: Yes, that will be our proposition. 'rhe rule 
excluding it of course is to protect the person who is 
on trial, but to exclude it in a case such as this one 
seemed to produce the contro.ry end, but the basis of 
the rule is protective. 

BM1YHCIC, C.J: That is not a logical inference that you can draw. 
It is not a question of protecting anybody, that because 
I have propensity, therefore I did something about which 
there would need to be proof in evidence. 

rm. BlJRT~ No, it does not necessarily follow. 

BARWIIJIC, C. J: Not at all tn a legal sense. 

Iffi. BTJRT ~ I cp i te ae;ree, but \~llJen you are judging the cogency 
of a confession in the ci -r0umst~c:mces of this case, 
what we establish is that this man Coo le says, 11 I murdered 
this girl un~er the circumstances confessed to," and so 
on. You are asked to say: is this a likely story, 
is it one which a jury might 1Nell believe or partly 
believe? If that be the true question, our submission 
would be that it is very relevant to know something about 
the person who suid be did it. 

OVJJ::J)\f, J: But whoever killed this girl., •• (inaudible). , •• Cooke in 
his killings has killed in a similar sort of fashion to 
the way in which this girl was killed, is that what you 
mean? 

Im. BUB'r: Putting it very broadly, I put it that way. I say 
"Very broadly". 

on:en, J: In his ldllings he left a sort of trademark? 

11IR. BUB'r: No, I do not know that I can put it as high as that. 
In other words, if it were Cooke wb0 was being tried for 
the murder of - - -

OV'Etf, J: I am talking about the killing. 

rm. BUET: This really gives the system. If Cooke were being 
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tried for the murder of Brewer, I am not sugpesting that 
the Crown could lead as against him the evidence 
relating to these other killings, because there is not 
a sufficient stamp of system about it. But there is, 
~ro~::cdly spealdng, a great s~milari ty, of course. 

In t'1o Bir>·mn murder, he re is a case 
of a mo.n breakine into a flat and stabbing someone, 
a girl who is asleep in bed. The Madrill case 
is perhaps even raore remarkable because there - the 
facts are set out in summary form in tho appeal book -
be broke into a house in rest Perth where two people 
were living. I think he was in the course of stealing 
He woke 1Hadrill while stealing, attacked her and 

strangled her while anotb er person was still in the flc,t. 
He tCJok the body out on to the lawn behind the flat and 
there was then some further conduct that he carried on 
with the body in the ·backyard, all of which lends some 
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weigbt, perhaps, to the view that be may well have broken 
off in the course of the Brewer murder and done something 
which otherwise you might think was a very odd thing to 
do, to have a bottle of lemonade, running the risk of 
being caught, and so on. Our submission would be that 
it is highly relevant to have rega.rd to the character of 
tbe person in a particular sense who has confessed to a 
crime. 

BARVfiCTC, C. J ~ Another way of lool:ing at it is that this was 
pllblicised and you find someone else might be excited 
into doing the thing. All these are competing ideas 
a:nd yon get into a very dangerous, slippery field when 
it is a cp est ion of drawing legal inferences. 

MH. BUR'r ~ I agree. 

BAWTICK, C.J: ils of this Tt1c)ment, you are not making it a 
special ground for leave tl:wt this evidence was not 
regarded, this evidence of propensity? You would seek 
to make it a ground of appeal but it is not a ground 
for special leave? 

HR. IlUR'r ~ It is put forward, I think, in the -

BAHHICK, C.J~ I am asking what you are saying. 

MR. BUH~[' ~ I put it forvvard as an independent ground. 

BAR\!ICK, C. J~ In this case for leave? 

Idll. J3UR'r: Yes, because we may be able to unearth what can 
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properly be . ~described as a question of law, but the 
d:i.f'ficul ty he re from the applicant's point of view is 
tbat we cannot say positively that this evidence was 
disre{~arded by any members of the Court of Criminal Appeal. 

(Cont'inued on page 27) 
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Bl\ltWJiCK, C. J ~ You had the benefit of it. 

MH. :SURT: With respect, we simply did not know. We think 
that, from the reasons of the Chief Justice, he would 
have said that this evidence is inadmissible, and I would 
disregard it altogethern Could I put the whole case 
on really a very broad ground and in this way: that 
if this evidence of Cooke's had been led before the jury 
on the trial of Beamish can anyone reasonably suppose 
that the jury would have nevertheless convicted :Seamish? 

BAR'riCK, C.J: I do not think that is the right ouestion. The 
question is: was there a mjscarriage on the material 
that is now RVailable including, if you like, Cooke's 
evidence? That is a different question. 

MR. BURT: I submit that if my question were answered- and I 
now forget which way I put it - either "yes" or "no" 
as the case may be, you say there was a miscarriage. 
If you had h~d this evidence before a jur~then in 
all probability _ the conviction of guilt that 
the other evidence had produced in the mind of the 
jury would have been displaced, in my respectful 
submission you say justice has miscarried. 

OWEN, J: "in all probahili ty" - it is putting it too high. 

MR. BURT~ It probably is putting it too high. I am trying 
to re-formulate the test in, I think, Craig. 

BARWICK, C.J: I do not know if I made my point. There is 
a difference when the Court of Criminal Appeal is 
considering whether there is a m5scarriage and 
adopting new evidence, it is able to say that this is 

material • -~ .. · to be before us that no reasonable 
jury would accept, and when you formulate your 
question you have to suppose in the questi6_n that 
a jury might hove accepted this evidence? 

MH. BURT: That is so. 

BAHWICK, C.J: So that it is not the same question. If you 
look at it from the point of view of the Court of 
Criminal Appeal deciding for itself whether there 
has been a miscarriage, that court is entitled to 
say in its ~udrment whether this evidence would 
be 1,e lieved by re::wonable men on a jury. That 
is part of its function in deciding whether there 
has been a miscarriage, surely? 

MR. BURT: I think, with great respect, that is putting 
it a little bit and significantly too high as 
against the applicant, the view of the law or 

.AB/MW/lc. 
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the criteria which,your Honour, in our respectful 
submission is the correct one is thnt which was 
laid down by Hr. Justice Rich and Mr. Justice 
Dixon as he then was in Craig v. King reported 
in (1933) 49 C.L.R. p.429, the beginning of the 
report' n is p. 439 where the criteria is 
laid down. Their Honours say, "A Court of 
Criminal Appeal hDs thrown upon it some 
responsibility .... (reads) ••.. remove the certainty 
of the prisoner's guilt which the former evidence 
produced." · 
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BARWICK, C,J: Yes, hut by that time you have the cogency of 
the evidence. Their Honours tre re are taking the 
next step. When you have material which the Court 
of Criminal Appeal thinks a reasonable jury might 
credit then you ask yourself the next question, 
because as I put to you earlier surely the cogency 
of the evidence is at the point of reception by the 
Court of Criminal Appeal, if they say that this 
evidence is not such as a jury might reasonably 
accept, we do not accept it as material on this 
appeal, so they have for themselves the duty of 
deciding whether the evidence is such that reasonable 
men might accept it as material - - -

MR. BURT: Again, with respect, I think that is putting it 
too high, because in our respectful submission when 
the Court of Criminal Appeal is considering the 
cogency of the evidence they are really considering 
what effect it is likely to have upon a reasonable 
jury properly instructed. 

WINDEYER, J: "likely to have"? I suppose that is so, but 
the actual sentence you have quoted is " •.• if 
considered in conjunction with the evidence already 
given upon the trial the result ought in the minds 
of reasonable men to be affected." 

MR. BURT: Yes, but then apply that to a criminal case. The 
test is the same, in our submission, whether it be 
a civil or a criminal case, but in a criminal case 
the npplication of the test is somewhat different 
because the result of the trial is affected if you 
have created a doubt. 

WINDEYER, J: True. 

MR. BURT: So it is not a question of whether the jurywould 
in all probability have positively believed the 
truth of what had heen said. 

OWEN, J: I think it would be sufficient if it were likely 
to raise a reasonable doubt in the minds of the jury. 

WINDEYER, J: Then it ought to affect the result. 

MR. BURT: Our broad proposition I think can be formulated 
this way: even if Cooke is a person with no credit 
at all so that upon no matter could you accept his 
word standing on its own, nevertheless when you see 
what he says here and line it up with the known 
facts sufficient from it does appear to enable 
one to say that if that evidence were led before a 
jury theJr would not have convicted Beamish. 

BAR'NICK, C .J: It is in that rolled-up way of stating it 

~m. BURT: 
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that £or my part I see danger, and of course normally 
in the cases one does roll the two steps together, 
but the first step is that you seek in a criminal 
appeal to ask the Court of Criminal fippeal to 
receive the evidence, and at that point in time the 
court is entitled to say, "We will see what credit 
reasonable men can give to this evidence." 

Yes. 
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BARWICK, C.J: And in a formal way if they say, "This is not 
credible by reasonable men", in strictness you reject 
the evidence and then you do not get to the final 
question of whether the two pieces of evidence together 
Pre likely to produce a different result on a new 
triDl. 

lm. BURT: That is so, I follow that, but the hub of our 
complaint is - and whether we C<m make jt good on 
the facts or not js perhaps another matter- that 
the Court of Criminal Appeal in substance refused 
to receive this evidence because they did not believe 
the witness as a nerson. 

BAR\HCK, C. J: You not ice th8t Me De rmott, in Sir Frederick 
Jordan's judgment, was referred to, and the King v. 
Stone is referred to in it. The King v. Stone is 
a very good case of evidence being rejected because 
of the lack of reneral credit of the would-be witness, 
and what Sir Frederick Jordan said on p.382 of Vol.47 
(1947) of the State Reports New South Wales is, "If 
it is such that no reasonable jury would be likely 
to regard him" - the witness - "as credible, this. 
of itself supplies a strong reason for rejecting the 
proposed new evidence, since it would add nothing 
that would influence a reasonable jury." If you 
express two things together you get a proposition 
like you put to us a moment ago. 

HR. BURT: With respect, it depends upon the type of evidence 
thnt you are dealing with. Craig was a case rather 
similar to the case your Honour has just referred to. 
If the fresh evidence amounts to no more than the 
say-so of the wttness giving it, and this is quite 
often the case where the fresh evidence is sought 
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to establish an alibi and after the trial is all 
over someone suddenly pops up and says, "I remember 
you were in such and such an hotel; you could not 
hove committed this crime; you were with me", in 
that type of evidence all one has is the say-so of 
the wttness, there is nothing else to test the 
credit; there is no we.y you could independently 
est8blish the truth of what he said. This is Craig's 
case. 

In that case I would agree that the 
personal credit-worthiness of the witness is alto­
gether decisive; if you do not believe him there 
is nothing else you can resort to. But at the 
other end of the scale the facts may be such that 
while holding a positive disbelief in the witness 
as a witness on credit you may nevertheless be 
forced to say that when he says this it is true, 
and when he says this it is true, and in the end 
you might be able to say the totality of what he 
says, notwithstanding that he is a liar, he is 
capeble of being believed. 

In other words it is not right to say 
that so and so is a liar so I will never believe 
8 word he snys. A liar might in vrTious c·ir.,:;.; 
cumstances be speaking the truth. In certain 
circumstances you might be sble to demonstrate that 
he is speAkinr: in the truth. In our respectful 
submission, this is this case. 
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I do not know if the court might recall 
I think it is Scott and Holly, which was a civil case, 
but it is interesting becrmse the general question 
of credit of a witness -when you say a witness hRs 
or has not credit - is discussed by Mr. Justice 
Issacs in it, and what he says is relevant here when 
he points out that credit of evidence is not always 
the same thing AS credit of A witness. 

BARWICK, C. J: You do not need to labour that, it is true 
enough, but here the fact that would he of significance 
is that Cooke committed a murder. The fact that he 
was in the flat, even, if you like, at some stage in 
this eve:ring, 1n the district on that evening, would 
he nothinr hy itself. Test it in a simple way. 
Assume you had the evidence that there was at this 
trial from Beamish, the confessions, and not proved 
by Cooke hut proved by someone else that Cooke was 
seen in the district - if you like he was seen at some 
time goinp into the house - you would have great 
difficulty in having a new trial if you were simply 
told that those were new facts. What you have been 
saying is somewhat different. You have been saying 
that although on observation of him and checking up 
the substantial details of what he said he is not 
credible as to the murder, because he ought to be 
credible about being in the district therefore you 
should believe him about the murder, that is really 
what you are saying. 

MR.. BURT ~ With great respect, no. 
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IVIR. BUHT (Continuing): I am not aslcing anyone to believe Cooke. 
1f'ha t I am saying, very broadly, is this. We have been 
convicted of a wilful murder which took place in a flat 
on a particular night, substantially on our own confession. 
'' e now ask the Court to enable us to prove that, on that 
same night, in that flat, there was a man caled Cooke, 
who might well have done the murder, and he says he did. 

We say that, if that evidence is put in with 
our confession, and this case goes to the jury in this 
way, the jury will never convict. 

BAh'''ICK, C. J.: You cannot dispute that quest •_on before the Court 
of Criminal Appeal. They have not accepted that view. 

1,ffi. BURT: No, but the reason they have not is that they will not 
believe Cooke, and they give regard to the respects in 
which it can be demonstrated that this man, as to this, 
is speaking the truth. 

BAI?.WICK, C.J.: They take the view that these facts are coincidence 
and not facts which really ••.. to him. 

1'v1IL BURT: I think that is putting it quite fairly. 

BAnv:rcK, C. J.: They do not err in princir> le in that respect. 

M~. BURT: I do not know that 

BAIC'ICK, C .J.: It is a bit much to argue that. 

MIL BUHT: Had I answered, ''No, they have not erred in principle,'' 
I would not, with great respect, have beer, saying, 
"Therefore, the case is not special. 11 In our respectful 
submission, there is not one formula which would enable 
you to say the case is special or is not. I think 
Halston v King brings it really down to the ultimate 
question: ''Has there been a miscarriage of justice? 

Perhaps I could put it the other way. If this 
Court feels that th~re is miscarriage of justice,t hen, 
I would submit that establishes that the case is special. 

KITTO, J.: I must confess that I have some doubt that the question 
of miscarriage of justice has any application to a case 
like this. 

]/IR. B URT: At this point? 

KI'L'TO, J. : At all. I may be quite wrong. 

l\!lR, BURT: I think, as before the Court of Criminal Appeal, it does 
not. I agree there may be other considerations here. 

KI'r'J'O, J.: I do not know that the proviso has any application to 
a case of special evidence. I merely express a doubt, 
not a view. 

BA:il'''ICK, C .J.: In this instance, this procedure does not involve 
the proviso. This is right at the root of the Court of 
Criminal Appeal function. 

~m. BURT: This is the proviso, really. 

B'r/PE/lc. 
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BAR1'TCK, C.J.: It is not a case of whether there is an irregularity. 

1/IR. BUHT: No. 

BAR'''ICK, C.J.: And you disregard it because of the proviso. 

Nffi. BURT: That is so• 

KIT'rO, J.: Yihat I really meant was that, if you a~Jply the test 
which the Court of Criminal Appeal did apply, to which 
you have referred, there remains nothing. There are 
no more questions to ask. 

MR. BUHT: I do not know that I follow. 

KITTO, J.: Take the case where the evidence does satisfy the test. 
It is cogent, rud you say, 11Those tests have been satisfied." 
There is no remaining question of miscarriage of justice. 

MR. BURT: Yes, because you have established---

KITTO, J.: Exactly. On the other hand, if you say the tests are 
not satisfied, of course, the question does not arise. 

NIR. BURT: That is so. 

BABYTCK, C .. J. : This depends on how special it is. When you have 
fresh evidence, before you do really satisfy the test, 
it means that a different result is perhaps probable or 
likely, nnd that fact supplies the miscarriage. 

MR. BURT: That is so. 

BAR\'TCK, C. J.: Because your code requires, before you allow the 
appeal, that you think there has been a miscarriage. 
You have these other rules about fresh evidence, but 
the statutory formula says that you need to be satisfied 
that there is a miscarriage. 

IVJR. BUHT: Perhaps a little the other way around. The emphasis is 
a little different in the normal case. The appellant 
says, "In the course of the appeal, something went wrong 
in law. There was a mistake of law. 11 The Court of 
Criminal Appeal says, "1f1e agree, but we will not allow 
the appeal because there has been no miscarriage of 
justice." 

BAH''ICK, C .J.: I am thinking on that in relation to this sort of 
appeal where it is fresh evidence only - nothing wrong 
with the trial. 

MR. BUHT: Yes, but, in this case, this is what we have to establish: 
that there has been a miscarriage of justice, and this is 
all there is. This is the only ground of appeal. There 
is no room left for - - -

BAl"FTCK, C .J.: You do establish it if you establish that you have 
fresh evidence which satisfies all the tests. 

MR. BURT: Yes. 

BAE.WTCK, C .J.: Because, wrapped up in those tes·cs, is the notion 
whether fresh evidence would result in miscarriage. 
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rvm • .BUlL'J': 'l'he only test unspecified is cogency, and our submission 
is that the Only reason why that is not specified is 
because Cooke is a person who, as a person, does not 
speak the truth. 

BA:W-ICK, C .J.: Have the Court of Criminal Appeal said he has not 
spoken the truth? 

:MR. BUR'l': Has not spoken the truth on this occ2.sion, Could I 
mention one matter with reference to that'! It goes back, 
perhaps, to the submission that the propensity of Cooke 
is relevant to the cogency of the evidence - of the new 
evidence. 

vriNJJi::YEB., J.: The propensity of Cooke to commit murder':' 

NIR. BURT: Yes. 

WINlJEYEH, J.: To confess to a murder which he did not commi t'f 

lVffi. BUl{.T: We cannot say some of which he did not commit. The 
fact of the matter is that he confessed to a large 
number of murders, which it was established he had done. 

''TINDEYE1<, J.: I thought there were some. They are all subject to 
appeal'? 

l'm. !3URT: No. There is only one. 

WINDEYEH, J.: Are there any others to which he confessed? 

IVm.. BUR'l' : Uo . 

1\1NDEYER, J.: There are no others to which it might be suggested 
he had falsely confessed? 

IV.ffi. BURT: No. He was arrested at a time when Western Australia 
had half a dozen unsolved murders. 

rrni!Ji]WER, J.: 'fhe only one is the subject of appeal'? 

lVIR. BUR'f: The only murder tow hich he confessed, which everybody 
says he did not do, is the murder of Brewer. 

BAWi'TICK, C .J.: Has he been tried for all the o·chers? 

~iffi.. BURT: No. He has been tried for one. 

BA:R11TICK, C. J.: If you are giving evidence of propensity, there 
is the question whether his confession is right in the 
others. 

J:·HL BURT: It has been accepted as so. 

BA:RV'ICIC, C. J.: By administration but not established by the 
Court 'i' 

l'IJI.. BURT: You again have regard to the type of 111an Cooke is -
to show that he is a man who generally commits murder. 
All of them say, when they are saying why they do not 
believe Cooke, avre do not believe Cooke- because the 
psychiatrist says he has a propensity to lie. 

BAH~"'ICIC, C. J.: They did not believe him':' 
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Ivm. BURT: They rely ':" each of them; expressly - on the evidence of 
Ellis, who is a psychiatrist, which is directed directly 
to Cooke 1 s propensj ty in one direction. They say, riyre 
accept this. Ellis tells us he is a liar, ahd why he lies, 
but we do not accept the evidence as to his propensity in 
other directions." 

BAR1"1CK, C. J.: You start off by saying that you come here and 
admit that this is an appellant, a man, who tells lies 
almost as of nature'l' 

MR. BURT: Vle have to say that a man situate like Beamish would be 
very fortunate if he found that the true murderer was a 
man of the.utmost integrity. You have to almost start 
from that point. 

MENZIES, J.: How long was it after his conviction that he first 
said he was responsible for this murder? 

JI/IR. BURT: I think he he.d said it before his conviction. 

WINDEYER, J.: If you believe some hearsay -at least it seems to 
me hear say as to v1ha t he told his wife he said at a very 
early stage. 

JI!IIL BURT: Yes. 

\li/L NDBYER, J.: I do not know how that gets in. It is what the 
detective said the wife said that he said, is it not? 

~ffi. BURT: I do not rely on what he is said to have said to his 
wife. We are not relying on that at all. I think the 
first reference he ·makes to it - the precise date, I 
can find in the report -was before he was tried. 

]!JR. '"ILSON: On the lOth September. He was arrested on the 1st 
September and charged with two or three offences of 
wilful murder on about the 3rd. He made this confession 
on the lOth, in different terms. 

Jli!ENZIES, J.: I said when he first said. 

JII!R. BURT: It is quite true that the c ·nfessions he made at various 
times were in somewhat different terms. When I say 
somewhat different terms, they varied in their detail. 
This, in normal cases, would go t~ credit, and so on, 
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in a significant way, but, again, it must be borne in 
mind, perhaps, as the Court of Criminal Appeal said, 
that Cooke may well have tried to create a situation in 
which he could say he was a compulsive killer, or some­
thing of that sort. 

He could have been endeavouring to lay the 
foundations of either a defence or a reason for postponing 
the inevitable, All this is perfectly true. It cuts 
both way 3 • If he is trying to set up a story that he is 
a compulsive killer, he may well feed inaccuracies into 
what is otherwise an accurate statement, and he may well 
say, "I killed the girl", one day, and the next day, 
say that he cannot remember, as if he is not quite master 
of the situation. 

In the end, it comes back to what he said in 
his confession, which is corroborated with an affidavit, 
for what it is worth. 

'~-
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Primarily, then, ·che problem is to measure up 
what happened against the known circumstances. In our 
submission, even when you do that, you cm say that, to 
a large extent, what he said is true. If so, then, you 
are obliged to say~ in our submission, that, if this 
evidence hacl been led before the jury, the result might 
well be different. 

o~',EN, J.: Did he, in his con.t'ession, make some reference to the 
milkman - the milk bottle'? 

I think carton; a bottle or carton. 

I do not think~ on the application for leave, 
I can really take the matter any further. 

1.'!1NDEYEH, J.: ''las there any association proved between Beamish, 
or any of these people, and Cooke? 

iAR. BURT: No, none whatever. 

VTilJDEYT~H, J.: Cooke and his .:uc: er a11;y· of the people? 

lVIH. BURT: None 1·1hatsoever. 

(Sitting suspended from 1 p.m. until 2.30 p.m.) 
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B.ARWICK, C. J: Yes, Mra ,Burt? 
;_;,;}~-q 

MR. BUlU: May it please the 00urt. His Hnn,..,ur Mr ,Justice Windeyer 
this m"rning directed my attentinn tn that part nf 
Cnnke's cnfifession·at p,327, line 9, relating tn 
"The bnttle of milk was definitely inside the dn0r ." I 
think if nrte.reads the sentences immediately preceding 
that particular sentence and the sentence immediately 
succeeding it, 0ne sees hnw it cnmes t0 be in the 
statement1<~ 

Cnnke had been telling nf the presence 0f 
the milkman in the vicinity. Then he talks nf 0pening 
the dnf'r and noticing a bottle nf milk 0n the flnnr, 
and nne can understand it being asked nf him, "Was the 
bnttle nf milk inside the dnnr", because at that mnment 
nnthing had been said abnut the flap tn the dn0r, and 
withnut the flap it wnuld n0t readily appear hnw it 
cnuld be that the milk had got inside the d00r at that 
time. 

Sn one sees it go that way. He said, 
"I have the impressi0n that the fln0r was 0f speckled 
terraz~0. The bnttle nf milk was definitely inside the 
door." Then, t0 explain that, "At the bntt0m of the 
dnnr there was a little hinged flap abnut 9 in. x 9 in." 

WINJJEn;R, J: Yes, I see. 

OVIEJ'if, J: Did he say, Mr. Burt, 0n ab nut hnw many nccasinns he had 
been nut to that part 0f the wnrld, that area, at night? 

NIR. BURT: I d 0 nnt think he said the number nf nccasi,.,ns, Sir, but 
he said on many nccasi,.,ns, althnugh he said he had 
never been tn the flat before, but next d00r 0n the same 
level. 

OVffiN, J: It 0ccurred to me that he might have kn0wn 0n his visits 
0n other 0ccasi0ns where the milkman put the milk -
thrnugh the flap- in which case, 0f C"urse, it w0uld be 
standing behind the dnnr. 

ME. BURT: Yes, but the pers0n taking the statement did n0t know 
that while the statement was being taken, and that is 
why it appears, rr this is why I suggest; that H appears, 
the way it dres appear in the statement. The 
interrngat0r 0f Cn0ke~ the person whn was given the 
statement, w0uld have fnund it difficult t0 understand 
h0w the b0ttle nf milk had g0t inside the dn,..,r, he 
n0t knowing ab0ut the flap, sn Cnnke says, 91 It was 
definitely inside the dn0r. There is a flap at the 
b0tt0m• 0f it thr0ugh which it can be put." Tbat is all. 

OW.8JIT, J: Yes, but, y0u see, if in the c0urse 0f srme nf these nightly 
visits he discnvered that the milkman always put the 
milk in thr0ugb the flap, that is snmething he might have 
mentinned in his statement - that the milk b0ttle was 
inside the d00r - wi thrut his actually having been inside 
the flat at all. 

ME, BURT: Yes, but if he had r•bserved the milkman, nf cr.urse, he 
w0uld have 0bserved him putting it in far later in the 
m0rning, if he bad 0bserved him 0n 0ther 0ccasi,..,ns; and 
then he guesses - which might be t00 wild a guess - h0w 
much milk he put tbr0ugh nn this particular 0Ccasi0n, 
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tt is very important of course, as his Honour 
the Chief Justice indicated this morning,really to 
get to the kernel of this thing, to point tn any evidence 
which would directly connect Cooke with the crime, place 
him in the flat at the approximate time nf the crime, 
and of course,better still,if the applicant can do it, 
directly cohnect him with the commissinn rf the crime 
itself. 

The impnrtance of that is appreciated, 
and to cover the ground as quickly as I can, perhaps 
l could take the cnurt directly to the cnnfession of 
Cooke, disregarding all the preliminary statements and 
pr0ceeding directly t" what he says c0ncerning the 
actual assault, and to sh0w ynu very quickly hnw that 
lines up with the independent witness. 

The relevant porti0n of the cr-nfession 
commences at p~329 nf the Appeal Book, at line 13, 
because this is the first reference tn be found to the 
actual attack. He said there: 

"I struck her tw0 quick blows with the blade of 
the hatchet either on the forehead 0r on the temple." 

~his would appear tn be accurate ennugh. 
There were actually three blows on the fnrehea~, and we 
will come to the other blow in a moment. He says: 

"The sound 0f the hatchet hitting her w0ke the 
d0g and it immediately scampered under the bed 
barking." 

There was independent evidence that the dog 
had been heard barking on that evening. Beamish too 
says it barked. 

"I patted the side 0f my leg a couple r'f times 
and made a s0nthing noise with my lips. The dog 
quietened ••.. (reads) •.•..• but I remember quite 
clearly hitting her twice in the frnnt of the 
throat with the blade of the hatchet," 

This was never mentinned by Beamish - this 
attack nn the thrnat - but the evidence relating to it 
appears in the evidence of Dr. Pearsnn at p.l6, line 
10, in the first vrlume. He says: 

"Dealing first 0f all with the scalp, there was 
a lacerated wound 2i in. in length •••• (reads) ••.• 
due to two separate injuries, approximately in 
the same place." 

At p.l8, line 9, he refers tn the wound to 
the neck. He says: 

11 Now in the neck: Across the frnnt c,f the neck 
there was a lrng thing line, 3i ~nches in length 
- that is it shnwn there." 

He is referring to a m0del. 

"The right tip was punctured and the left tip 
was deeper than the right - over there. In between 
these twn there·was a light line, and the situatinn 
of the whole wrw i was just at the rnr t nf the neck." 
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Then he gnes nn tn describe the wnunds tn 
the chest. 

S0 the descriptinn nf the wnunding, as given 
by Cnnke 1 tn the head and the thrnat,appears tn be 
substantially cr-nfirmed by the medical evidence. 

Onnke then gres nn at p.329 tr describe the 
nther wnunds, He said: 

"I wreti6hed back the sheet - I think I hit her 
a c0uple 0f times in the ribs with the hatchet 
••• 1 (riads) •••.••• it cnuld even have been the face." 

1This all appears at p.329, and with respect 
this is extranrdinarily impnrtant evidence if one 
attempts tn align it with the facts. What Cnrke is 
saying is at this stage he is facing tnwards the fnnt 
nf the bed with the hatchet in the right hand attacking 
the deceased in the way that he describes. Then, 
reading frnm the bnttnm nf the page 329, "I turned 
ar0und", an he is turning r0und nnw tr face the frnnt 
nf the bed, "and hit he-r with +he side r•f the hatchet 
nn the head - I dn nrt remember exactly where, it 
cruld even have been the face. I hit her very hard nn 
this 0ccasi"n and I remember the handle splitting near 
the head." 

This is impnrtant, with respect, fnr twn 
reasnns. In the first place, it establishes a hit nn 
the right side 0f the face 0f the deceased with an 
instrument which as used nnw is really a blunt 
instrument; it is the side nf the hatchet as he is 
turning arC"Und. When nne gnes tn the medical evidence, 
ynu can see that snme such wrund did in fact happen. 

WINDEYER, J: Mr. Burt, I dn nnt want tn interrupt yr•u unduly, 
but the nature nf the wnunds, was that prnved at the 
trial nf Beamish, I mean published in the press, and 
sn nn? 

lVffi. BURT: I dn nnt kn0w tn what extent it was published in 
the press, Sir. It was certainly proved, because the 
pnst m0rtem repnrt was put in. But this particular 
wnunding was never prnved in the cnnfessinn of Beamish, 
as the- w0unds acrnss the thrnat are nnt mentinned by 
Beamish, nC"r is this particular wnund, and it never 
appears t0 have bec'·L1e significant in the trial nf 
Beamish. The wound I describe n0w is a wnund tn the 
right hand side nf the face nf the deceased as with a 
blunt instrument. ·That appears in the post mnrtem 
repnrt which is nn p.302. 

OWEN, J: Cnnke was at liberty, was he, at the time 0f Beamish' s 
trial? 

~m. BURT: Yes, Sir. In the criminal life nf Conke he had at 

PM/H/3c. 
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this time cnmmitted the murder nf Birkman but he was still 
at liberty. 

At p.302, in the pnst m0rtem repnrt, there 
are there described injuries tn the face - ab0ut the 
middle nf p.302: 
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"There ·was an abrasi0n ab0ut 1 inch in length 
and running int0 the right eyebr0w •••. (reads) •.• 
Fr0m the c0rners nf the m0uth there was a blond­
stained discharge~" 

The evidence relating tn that, as given by 
Dr. Pearsnn, appears at the t0p nf p.18. He says: 

"There was extensive bruising nf the right 
cheek •••• (reads) •.....• the right c0rner 0f 
the ID0Uth," 

(Continued nn page 39) 
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Iim. ;ur..~r (Continuing): This i::_; o.n injury of course consistent 
witb a blow with the side of the hatchet to the right 
side of the face, wbicb c0ul:l well have hnppened in 
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the wny Cr~ole is describing, c:ts he turns around. But 
Coo1B goes on to Si:.c.y th2t ;1.s a result of doing that the 
handle of the hatchet broke. This, with respect, is 
hi,'~bly significant, too, because the hatchet h2ncUe did 
in f'act break. 

The hatchet was produced at the trial and if 
perhaps the Court would lobk at the photographs of it 
wh",-t; "becomes significant 2bout it is that the shaft of 
tllo h nt chet has frnctured on the side, indic2.ting thnt 
the side of the fracture b~s been put under tension, 
ns vwvld occur if the instrument had been used by 
hitting on the ric:ht side of the face 1vi th the point of 
the hatchet ~own. It is not the type of fracture that 
one would get with a blow one would expect if the 
bat chet were used as in chopping. 

It is, with respect, somewhat significant 
th~:d:; be describes this wound, which is confirmed by 
tbc medical evidence, describes how he did it and 
describes the result, in so far as the instrument used, 
of bi s doing it, which \Mas confirmed by the photograph 
of -the hatchet. He then goes on to describe the wounds 
in the vicinity of the ribs. 

I will not vmste the Court's time on it beyond 
saying it is substantially accurate. The origitml 
evidence relating to it is in the evidence of Pearson, 
partj_cularly at page 18 line 18, and page 19 line 10. 
That I think is all that Cool-e has to say concerning the 
original injury with the hatchet. He breaks off. He 
tells us at page 330 he went outside, dropped the 
hat cb et where the hatchet was ultimately found - of 
course, Coole may have knovvn that by reading the evidence -
and he tells us where he put the hatchet. He then had 
a bottle of lemonade. Fe know independently that there 
was lemonade in the flat. 

Having done c.ll tbat, he tben returns to the 
attac1{ with tbe sciGsors, and this refers to the lapse 
of time which occurs between the hatchet attack and the 
scissor attack that I uentioned this morning. ·Then his 
description of the scissor attack is on page 330, from 
line 22 and following, and then at page 330, line 30, 
he says: HI tossed the sheet back over her." Having· 
pulled the sheet down at the bottom of the bed, nr tossed 
the sheet· back over her and I walked out of the bedroom 
shutting the door behind me. 11 

That is also somewhat significant. He is 
saying clearly enough that as he left the bedroom he 
shut the door, and Beamish, on the contrary, simply says 
tha-t he ran out of tbe room. What is significant about 
it is that this door is generally left open anc1 it was 
open ,,vhen Dinny left the flat on the evening of the 
honlicide, but when he comes back to the flat on the 
following morning this door is in fact shut. That 
appears on page 5, line 24. He says, "I got no 
res~onse so I went back to the car. I keep a key on 
the car ring and I let myself in. I went across to the 
middle door, opened it, and came up against the bedroom 
door, which was shut. ·1 One can add that the photographs 
sbo'-'\1 that the door handle was a silver banana-shaped 
handle, and from the evidence of the police it baci no 
fingerprints on it. -: 
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Then Cook says that be left the scissors on 
the room divider. There is some doubt as to what; 
precisely that meant. Tbey were tn fact found on the 
room divider. He says he then looked the back door 
from inside, whicb was in fact the position on the 
following morning - tbe door was locked - and he then 
goes on to describe tbe ;;.bb.ndonmont by him of tbe motor 
car. 

That is, I think, all that need be directly 
said concerning the evic.enoe as to what appears in the 
confession, but I thinli: I should very briefly, if I may, 
say something concerning lleamish 1 s confession, because 
his Honour the Chief Justice said this morr1ing that the 
cose against Beamish vJas a strong one. I do not really 
wish to discuss this in detail but I think it must be 
said that the only evidence against Beamisb really was 
his confession. I know it was repeated on one or tVtD 
or perhaps more occasions, and that he was a deaf mute, 
so you start off witb D. co.se which is dependent upon 
the confession of a deaf mute. 

But in arldi tion to that, there are certain 
fe:J.tures of Beamish' s confession whi eh can be 
independently established to be wrong, so if it comes 
to a competition in point 0f cogency between the tvo 
confessions, I suppose one could criticise either of 
them. 

Benmish' s d.escription of the woundings, without 
e;oing into details, cl.oes not acccmnt for a number of 
tbe wounds, and this is mentioned by his Honour the 
Chief Justj_cein tm Court of Crim:inal Appeal at pace 504 
of tbe appeal book, where be says, 17 As to Beamish not 
mentioning the cut across the throat 11 , and his Honour's 
comment upon that: 

1Tbat is not surprising. This act was done in a 
frenzy of blood lust ••• (reads) .•••• the scissor 
stabs in rela-Uon ta the sexual interference." 

It can be said, I suppose, equally of either confession, 
but vvhat is more strikillg 1c1.bout Beamisb' s confession -
which, incidentally, is on page 71, or one copy of it 
is on page 7l of the appeal book - is that it starts 
with Beamish standing outside the bedroom window looking 
into the bedroom, but there is nothing at all in the 
case to tell us how be came to be there or what time of 
nic:ht it was that be was there, and in fact Beam:Lsh 
actually had the wrong day of the week, perhaps, for 
him to be there. I say :1perbaps11 because in fairness 
wl'w.t he said was that it was Sunday night. It was 
r1.ctually Saturday night running into Sunday morning. 
There may not be a great deal of significance in that, 
but this is where the story starts so far as Beamish 
is concerned and it j_s obviously a very condensed story 
if it is in truth describing something that happened. 

I say that for this reason, that it starts 
with Beamish looking through the bedroom window, 
see:ing the deceased st8Jlding in the bedroom in the nude, 
and the next thing we know is tbat he walks into the 
flat - be pushes the key out and opens the back door and 
goes into the flat - and the deceased is then lying on 
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the bed asleep. ~here sec,Js to be a grent concentration 
of time there somewhere which is left unexplained as to 
\'lbat the time relationship between the first view of the 
deceased ano1he entry into the flat really is. 

He then describes at page 75 the attack, 
nnrl 1r1hat is significEwt about it, I thinlc, is that there 
is no appreciable lapse ''f time between the attack with 
the hatchet and the atto.ck with the scissors. That 
appeo.rs I think specific2lly 'Nhere he talks of the two 
blo~-vs on the head and of course omits any blows on the 
thront. He says thnt he jammed the dog in the door 
and rendered it unconscious, but there was nothing next 
morning to indicate that anything happened to the dog. 
He then se.ys at p.::\ge 76 that be pulled the sheets off 
the bed - he refers to them as blankets -· and threw 
the pillow on to the floor. Then he describes a 
sexual assault with tile blanket ·- by which he means the 
sheet - taken from th0 back of the bed and put over the 
deceased's head to enable hiu to do this thing. That 
ha vine: be en demo, he says be then ran out of the flat. 

The difficulty vvith that is the,t when the 
deceased was seen on the following morning the sheet was 
t'~clced in at the foot of the bed, consistent with what 
Cook says, inconsistent with what Ikamish says, and the 
position o:f the sheet, ctuite neatly tucked in at the 
bottom of th o bed, can be seen in the photographs. 

He then says firstly that he ran out of the 
back door and ran away. Of course, that was quite 
wrong. He corrected tbat later when detectives 
suggested tb at it nuwi:; have been the front door, 
it could not have been the back door, because the back 
door was locked. At page 78 he talks of getting the 
hatchet off the wood heap, which again was q1 ite wrong, 
and so on. 

I wi 11 n0t go into it in detail because at 
present I am only applyin,:!, for leave, but I am 
mentioninG thCJse matters to indicate that CJne can 
direct very many criticisms to the confessions of 
B eamish. 

WHJDliY:SR, J: Why was it sugge:'3ted that Beamish would be making 
a false confossicm? \'!as any sugc:estion made about that? 

HR. BUST: No, there was nothing to suggest that he was 
making a false confession. 

1.iiND!.:iYCIL, J: You are now suecestinc that it was a false 
confession? 

HH. :BUTIT: Yes, but not false in the way it is suggested that 
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Cocke' s was false. Vhat I would suggest with respect to 
Beamish is tbat the confession was the product of a deaf 
mute, who was necessarily, and I do not say wrongly, 
led into it. The liletborJ of communication was so crude 
that the confession in very many points would be the 
product of a leading, and a very good example of it 
pcrl1o.ps is tbe statement that he ran out the back door 
and the detective saic~, 11 llre you sure it wasn't the front 
cloor'1 , and then he wcJUld say, 11 Yes, it was tbe front 
door. 11 I am not saying tbat in criticism of Lei tch, 
who had this very difficult job of interrogating 
Boc•.,tish, but I e.r1 suc;r::octing that tr1e confession was the 
,woduct of that sort of process and lacked weight as a 
renul t of it. 

41. IIll.. BUJI.T, Q.C. ll/9/64~ 



But I do not think it was ever suggested 
thnt Beamish was himself consciously fabricating a 
confession. Of course, Boamish, one must say, too -
and it probably militates against me -was speaking of 
an event that happened soxue 10 months before. Even in 
the case of Beamish, there was a very long tirae between 
the homicide and the actual interrogation. The 
homicide was on 20th December 1959 and the interrogation 
commenced in April of 1961. 

1fiNDEYER, J: But a lapse of time is hardly a thing to make a 
person ready to say that he had killed somebody if he 
had not. 

MH. BUHT: Yes, I quite agree, Sir~ It would be wrong of me 

TC/PH/4d, 
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to try to go into it at this time, but you are clealing 
with someone whose ce_pacit y to convey thought by words 
we:.1s almost non est. 

(Continued on puge 43) 
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MR. BURT (Continuing): One might reach this position and 
be able to put it fairly this way: that had Beamish 
not been discovered at all and hPd Cooke confessed 
in terms of this confession could anyone reasonably 
suggest that he would not have been convicted on it? 
This is not the ultimate test -

BARWICK, C.J: It is not a test Bt all. You have an untested 
confession; the tendency would be to accept it~ I 
suppose. 

MR. BURT: But if he were to be faced with this confession -
put him perhaps in the posttion of Beamish. He at 
the trial steadfastly denied the truth of what he 
had confessed to. If Cooke had been similarly placed, 
having confessed in terms of this confession, what 
I submit is that undoubtedly he would be convicted, 
and I say it is relevant for this reason: if that 
conclusion is right then in our submission it does 
follow that if this witness is now to be put before 
a jury it will at least go so far as to displace the 
conviction of guilt proch.cr::ec. by the confession of 
Beamish as against Beamish. 

OWEN, J: When you refer to "this confession" I am not quite 
sure which confession you are referring to; there are 
B number of them, and they differ. 

MR. BURT: I think it is perhaps fair to say that they differ 
2 great deal; they certainly differ at very significant 
points. However, this is the evidence that the 
applicant was re1ying upon ns being the fresh evidence, 
and I know it can be attacked bilaterally by saying 
Cooke said other things on other occasions. 

BARWICK, C.J: When you say that he accurately described the 
rooms, he did not do that the first time, did he? 

MR. BURT: Accuracy I suppose is necessarily a relevant thing. 

BARWICK, C.J: You are relying, you say, on the correspondence 
of the now submitted document, which you say is the 
fresh evidence, and the fact 5 but there was no such 
correspondence in his first confession. 

MR. BURT: It is a matter of degree, I think, Sir. 

BARWICK, C.J: Did not the police officer point out to him 
the discrepancies? 

MR. BURT: Yes, they pointed out certain discrepancies, and 
let the applicant face this squarely enough, and 
I think it is something the Crown would have to say, 
and it does go to cogency. In certain respects it 
could be shown on the police evidence that where 
he may have been wrong he was told what was right 
and the next time he gave the confession, it was 
right. This is something thnt is in the book. 

BARWICK, C.Jg You cannot brush it off lightly like that. 

lVIH. BURT: 

AB/MW/ld. 
Beamish. 

When you say "I rely very much on this correspondence", 
for someone to say "yes, but he was told it was wrong 
the first time <md he got it right the second time" - - -

In some respects, yes. 
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BARWrCK, C.J: That is a tremendous inroad upon your assertion 
that there is validity or importance in the correspondence 
of his last confession to the facts. 

MR. HURT~ I Etgree with you, rmd I do not wish to brush it off. 
Of course I would be happier if the circumstance were 
not present but I recognise it is present and I recog­
nise the significance of its presence. I concede that 
it goes to cogency but of course it does not touch by 
any means all the points of Cooke's confession; of 
course it does not go very far to positively establish 
that it was wrong. I suppose one must have regard to 
this: if Cooke is confessing to a crime which, had he 
committed it, was committed some years before, the same 
can be said of Beamish to a lesser degree. 

WINDEYER, J: Why to a lesser degree? 

MR. BURT: Because of the time factor. 

WINDEYER, J: So much time hFJd not elElpsed? 

~m. BURT: Beam ish was confessed to something that had hanpened 
18 months before. 

WIUDEYER, J: If Cooke were indicted for wilful murder then all 
that is now said about the correspondence of Cooke's 
confession with the facts, assuming that had happened -
he was indicted and denied this confession - could be 
said about Beamish's confession, I suppose? 

MR. BURT: Beam ish's confession did not correct his mistakes 
entirely. 

WINDEYER, J: No, it is not so detailed, but one could say if 
Cooke were put upon his trial, and denied his confession, 
"Well, we have Beamish's confession". I suppose you 
would say thnt if Beamish were available he would be 
called as a witness? 

MR. BURT: Yes, that is what would happen. You could have this 
situetion exactly the other way round. 

W INDEYER, J : Reversed? 

~ffi. BURT: Yes, if Cooke had been tried first and it happened 
that Beamish's confession was somewhere available. The 
applicant's submission of course ts that this riddle 
must ultimately be resolved~ and should ultimately be 
resolved by a ,iur;v. 

WINDEYER, J: I appreciate what you say about that, Mr. Burt. 

MR. :EtJ.R.T: The law on this matter really does not take any time, 
I think, to canvass. The court will remember White v. 
The Queen which was decided only two years ago and is 
reported in (1960) 107 C.L.R. at p.l74 where the court 
said at p.l76, "Efforts over a long period of years to 
define the effect of the word 'special' have broken 
down but it remains true that what we are required to 
look for is something that is special in the case. 
Primo facie we do not think the case is special unless 
it involves some point of law of general application 
and therefore of importnnce." 
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This is the prima facie position. Our 
respectful submission is thf:t it does not necessarily 
follow tha a point of law of special importance must 
be involved in every case, and with respect this hms 
not always at least been thought to have been necessary. 
I think it is fair to say that in the history of 
this court one would see that Mr. Justice Starke had 
the most restrictive view of this matter whereas Mr. 
Justice Isaacs had the most liberal view and all 
other views would appear to fall within those two 
points. Yet with respect it is interesting to see -
firstly perhaps in Rose v. King -reported in Vol.30 
C.L.R. p.246 at p.251 in a joint ~udgment of the then 
Chief Justice Knox and Mr. Justice Gavin Duffy 9 and 
Mr. Justice Stark, ·they discussed the similarity, 
if there is one, between the position of this court 
and the Privy Council in criminal matters, in what 
their Honours say in one sentence at 251 is, " •• ,. 
the overriding consideration upon the topic hns 
reference to justice itself", whjch I submit means 
that in the end it is not possible to cramp the 
jurisdiction by saying thot it must be shown that 
there is a point of law involved which is of itself 
an important question of law. All that need be 
shown, in our submission, in the end is that justice 
requires that the lec,ve be given, so that if this 
court on a consideration of the material comes to 
the conclusion that there has been a miscarriage cf 
justice then the leave should be given, with respect. 

Of course in Craig's case, reported in 
(1933) Vol.49 C.L.R. p.429 9 leave was given, and 
that was a case substantially where leave was given 
on the basis of the fresh evidence, although it 
was not confined to that; there were other questions 
in Craig. 

I am sorry; in the end it was refused in 
Craig with Mr. Justice Evatt and Mr. Justice McTiernan 
dissenting. It was given in Davis and Cody 57 C.L.R. 
at p.l70. 

With respect, on the application for the 
leave, I feel I can take the matter no further, and 
I merely leave it then on this basis: that a 
consideration of Cooke 's confession, having regard 
to the facts which can be independently established, 
stamps the confession with a sufficient degree of 
cogency to enable one to say that had this confession 
been placed before a jury at the trial of Beamish 
and in the context of all the evidence against 
Beamish then the evidence which led to the conviction 
of guilt against Beamish on the first trial would 
not then be sufficient to carry the necessary 
conviction in the mind of the jury, and that the 
Court of Criminal Appeal went wrong really in 
principle because in assessing the cogency of the 
fresh evidence they allowed their assessment, and 
their proper assessment, of the truthfulness of 
Oooke as a person to control the result, and they 
did not give proper regard to the independent 
circumstances which established the cogency of the 
confession. 

BARWICK, C.J~ You snying it th8t way is to say what you 
repudiated before lunch, nomely you say because the 

AB/r'!W/3ct. 
Beamish. 
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facts about the milk bottle nnd the fry pan and 
the driver may be right al thoueh you think he is 
lying as to the murder yet that is reason for 
submitting the confession to the jury? 

MR. BURT: No, I do not wish to put it that WEly. 

BARWICJ} 9 C.J~ That is perhaps a cruel way for me to put it, 
but is not that what you are saying, really, in 
substance? 

MR. BURT~ No, I submit not. I submit thnt wh11t the Court of 
Criminal Appeal was saying was thAt because we have 
formed the gener81 opinion that this man is a liar 
we there£ore say he is lying when he says he 
murdered this girl, and we disregard the facts which, 
in the course of the confession are ind·ependently 
established to be true, which is rather, with 
respec~, n different way of putting it. 

BAR"liCK, C .J ~ :But you are speaking as if those independent 
facts were the really relevant facts. The relevant 
facts are the facts that he said he knew this r,irl. 

~m. BUfi_T: That is the ultimate 

BARWICK, C.J: The court below, hoving said, "We do not believe 
anything he says because we believe he is a liar", 
they say he is a liar,"but we hAve examined closely 
his various efforts and we do not think any reasonable 
jury would believe his nssertion that he killed her." 

MR. BURT~ Thnt is the way they put it; I would say they are 
wrong in law because, with great respect, that is 
not the quest ion. It is not whether a jury would 
positively believe that Cooke killed the girl; they 
do not have to go that far. 

Our respectful submission is that once you 
find a person of Cooks's c2paci ty in the flat on the 
ni8ht then that would be enough to displace the con­
viction of guilt which the evidence against Beamish 
apparently had produced before. It is a highly 
significant piece of evidence, of course, it can 
le8d into a situation which is established by the 
evidence Agrlinst Beamish, lead into it on the night 
of the homicide the character of Cooke's propensity, 
and then Cooke saying, "I did it", with great respect 
our submission would be that that would displace 
any conviction thnt might be produced in the mind of 
the jury hy the other evidence against Beamish and 
that evidence standing alone. 

B.ARWICK, C .J: Then you really say you could ra:iBe your 
application if you merely proved that a man who 
had been known to commit another murder was in 
the district and in this house at some time through 
the night, in the face of all thAt evidence at 
Beamish's trial. 

MR. BURT: Yes. 

AB/MW/4d. 
Beamish. 

(Continued on page 47) 
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Ivffi , BURT : Yes. I would say, with great respect, that if, at the 
trial of Beamish, one had been able to establish that a 
man of Cooke 1 s propensity had been in that flat during 
that night, that nothing more was known as to what he 
did in the flat, and he remained completely mute on the 
point of what he did in the flat, then, the mere fact, 
in our submission, that you have a man of that propensity 
in the flat that night would be enough for a jury to say: 
"r·e are not satisfied. Here is a multiple murderer whom 
we know to have been in the flat. We have a murder which 
is not outside the type of murders this man has committed 
in the past, and we are not prepared to say Beamish did 
it and not Cooke. Y'e are not satisfied beyond reasonable 
doubt." 

That, in my respectful submission, would be 
enough •. 

BAR1FICK, C. J.: The Court will adjourn for a few minutes. 

BT/PE/ld. 
Beamish. 

(Sitting suspended from 3.16 p.m. until 3.50 p.m.) 
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JUDG!\lliNT 

BARWICK, C.J: The C0urt dres n0t wish t0 hear yr,u, Jllir. 

B'l'/H. 
Bem1d.sh. 

Wils0n. 

This is an applicatinn f0r special leave 
tr appeal fr0m a j udpment 0f the Cnurt 0:[ Criminal 
Appeal. l'ITr. Burt has very pr0perly c0nfined himself 
tn the gr0unds upnn which special leave shnuld be 
granted. He has develnped these very fully, and very 
well, if I might say sn. 

H0wever, the C0urt, taking int0 cnnsiderati0n 
all that has bEen said, is 0f 0pini0n that there is 
nr grrund shr'wn here frr special leave, and, acc0rdingly, 
special leave will be refusedr 

HEAHING CONCLUD1-.;D 

AT 3. 53 P .!Vi., TJ-JE CUURT PIWCEEDED WITH O'l'illsR BUSINESS. 
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